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Department of Corporate Services 
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(Script Code: 544178) 
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Subject: Annual Report and 6th AGM Notice of the Company for the F.Y. 2024-25  

Ref: Compliance to Regulation 34(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 

The 6th Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled to be held on Monday, 28th July, 2025 at 
11:00 A.M. (IST) through video conferencing/other audio-visual means. 

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, we are enclosing herewith the Annual Report and 6th AGM notice of the Company for the F.Y. 
2024- 25.  

The Record Date for the purpose of determining the eligibility of the Members to attend the 6th 
Annual General Meeting of Company will be 22nd July, 2025. 

You are requested to take the same on record. 

For, Piotex Industries Limited 
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 
PIOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

NAME DESIGNATION 

Mr. Abhay Shriram Asalkar Chairman & Managing Director 

Mr. Yogesh Omprakash Nimodiya  Executive Director 

Mr. Sandeep Vitthalrao Deore  Non-Executive Director 

Mr. Sandeep Narayanrao Deore Non-Executive Independent Director 

Mrs. Bhavisha Kunal Chauhan Non-Executive Independent Director 

 

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

NAME DESIGNATION 

Mr. Abhay Shriram Asalkar Managing Director 

Mr. Yogesh Omprakash Nimodiya  Chief Financial Officer 

Mr. Mahendra Singh Rajpoot Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE           STAKEHOLDER’S RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

NAME DESIGNATION NAME DESIGNATION 

Mr. Sandeep Narayanrao Deore Chairman Mr. Sandeep Narayanrao Deore Chairman 

Mrs. Bhavisha Kunal Chauhan Member Mrs. Bhavisha Kunal Chauhan Member 

Mr. Yogesh Omprakash Nimodiya  Member Mr. Abhay Shriram Asalkar Member 

 

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

NAME DESIGNATION 

Mr. Sandeep Narayanrao Deore Chairman 

Mrs. Bhavisha Kunal Chauhan Member 

Mr. Sandeep Vitthalrao Deore  Member 

REGISTERED OFFICE 

F/II Block, Plot No. 16/2, M.I.D.C., Pimpri, Pune Maharashtra - 411018, India. 

Email: office@piotex.in  

Website: www.piotexindustries.com   

Phone: +91 9156744401 

STATUTORY AUDITOR 

M/S. S V J K & Associates,  

813, I Square Business Park, Near Shukan Mall, Besides CIMS Hospital, Science City Road, Sola, Ahmedabad-380060, Gujarat, India. 

Contact No.: +79 46041102 

Email: info@svjkadvisors.com  

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 

M/S. Nirav Shah & Associates,  

901, Samruddhi Complex, Opp Sakar 3, Near Income tax, Ahmedabad-380014, Gujarat, India. 

Contact No.: +91 9714448961 

Email: niravshah6272@gmail.com  

REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENT 

CAMEO CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED 

No.01, Club House Road, Mount Road, Chennai-600002, India 

Tel. Number: 044 40020700/28460390 

Email: sivaram@cameoindia.com   
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PIOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

CIN: U17299PN2019PLC187464 

Registered Office: F/II Block, Plot No. 16/2, M.I.D.C., Pimpri, Pune Maharashtra - 411018, India 
Tel No.: +91-9156744401; Email: office@piotex.in, Website: www.piotexindustries.com 

________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

NOTICE OF 6TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

NOTICE is hereby given that the Sixth (6th) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of Piotex 
Industries Limited will be held on Monday, 28th July, 2025 at 11:00 A.M. (IST) through video 
conferencing/other audio-visual means to transact the following business: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESSES: 

 

1. Adoption of Financial Statements: 

To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company including the Audited Balance 
Sheet for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash 
flow statement for the year end on that date and the report of the Board of Directors and Auditors 
thereon; 

In this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as Ordinary Resolution; 

 

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st 
March, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash flow statement for the year end on that 
date and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the members, be 
and are hereby considered and adopted.” 

 

2. Re-Appointment of Mr. Sandeep Vitthalrao Deore (DIN: 05138825) as director liable to retire by 
rotation: 

In this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution; 

 

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Sandeep Vitthalrao Deore (DIN: 05138825), who retires by rotation at this 
meeting, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company.” 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 

3. Appointment of Secretarial Auditors: 

In this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution; 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if any, of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, [including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof, for the time being in force], and Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, and based on the 
recommendation of the Audit Committee and the approval of the Board of Directors of the Company, 
consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded for appointment of M/s Nirav Shah & Associates, 
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Company Secretaries (Firm Registration No. S2024GJ962800) as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company 
for a period of five (5) consecutive years, commencing on April 1, 2025, until March 31, 2030, to conduct 
Secretarial Audit of the Company and to furnish the Secretarial Audit Report. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to fix 
the annual remuneration plus applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses payable to them during their 
tenure as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company, as determined by the Audit Committee in 
consultation with the said Secretarial Auditors. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized to take such steps and 
do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things as may be considered necessary, proper, and expedient to 
give effect to this Resolution.” 

 

4. Appointment of Mr. Vijendra Kamalrao Deshmukh (DIN: 08510913) as Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

In this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution; 

 

“RESOLVED THAT in terms of the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
and approval of the Board of Directors and pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152, 160, 161 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with other applicable rules as amended, Regulation 17 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable laws and 
pursuant to the provisions of the Articles Of Association of the Company, Mr. Vijendra Kamalrao 
Deshmukh (DIN: 08510913), who was appointed by the Board of Directors as an Additional Director of 
the Company in the category of Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f. 30th June, 2025 and who is 
eligible for appointment and has given his consent to act as Director of the  Company and in respect of 
whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a member under Section 160(1) of the Act 
proposing his candidature for the office of Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as the 
Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company for a term of 5 years w.e.f. 30th June, 2025. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT to give effect to the above resolution, all the Directors of the Company be 
and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, including to settle 
any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise and to finalise and execute all documents and writings 
as may be necessary. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to issue a 
certified copy of the above resolution and forward the same to concerned authorities for necessary 
actions. 

 For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Piotex Industries Limited 

 
 
 

 
Date: 30th June, 2025 
Place: Pune  

Mr. Abhay Shriram Asalkar
Managing Director 

DIN: 06851614 

Mr. Yogesh Omprakash 
Nimodiya 

   Executive Director 
DIN: 06851606 
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IMPORTANT NOTES TO ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 
1. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, (“Act”) setting out 

material facts relating to Special Business under Item No. 3 and 4 of the Notice to be transacted at 
the 6th AGM is annexed hereto. 
 

2. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India (“MCA”) has, vide its circular No. 9/2024 dated 
September 19, 2024, read with circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020, January 13, 
2021, December 8, 2021, December 28, 2022 and September 25, 2023 (collectively referred to as “MCA 
Circulars”), inter-alia allowed conducting of AGM through Video Conferencing/ Other Audio-Visual 
Means (“VC/OAVM”) facilities to be held on or before September 30, 2025, which does not require 
physical presence of the Members, Directors, Auditors and other persons at common venue. The 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has also, vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/ CFD/CFDPoD- 
2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated October 3, 2024 (“SEBI Circular”), provided certain relaxations from 
compliance with certain provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations. In compliance with the provisions 
of the Act, SEBI Listing Regulations, MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular and all other relevant circulars 
issued from time to time, the 6th AGM of the Company is being conducted through VC / OAVM facility. 
The deemed venue for the 6th AGM shall be the Corporate Office of the Company situated at F/II Block, 
Plot No. 16/2, M.I.D.C., Pimpri, Pune Maharashtra - 411018, India. Hence, Members can attend and 
participate in the AGM through VC/ OAVM only. The detailed procedure for participating in the meeting 
through VC / OAVM is given in the Notice. 
 

3. The 6th AGM of the Company is being convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with the applicable 
provisions of the Act, SEBI Listing Regulations, and read with all the applicable MCA and SEBI Circulars. 

 
4. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 

and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended), Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, revised 
Secretarial Standards on General Meeting (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 
and MCA Circulars, the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of 
the business to be transacted at the AGM and facility for those Members participating in the AGM to 
cast vote through e-voting system during the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an 
agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”) for facilitating voting through 
electronic means, as the authorized agency. NSDL will be providing facility for voting through remote 
e-Voting, for participation in the 6th AGM through VC/ OAVM facility and e-Voting during the 6th AGM. 
The instructions and other information relating to e-Voting are given in the Notice. Once the vote cast 
by the Member, the same shall not be allowed to be changed subsequently or cast again. 

 
5. In terms of the MCA Circulars, since the physical attendance of the Members has been dispensed 

with, there is no requirement for the appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility to appoint 
proxies to attend and cast vote on behalf of the Members is not available for this AGM. However, 
in pursuance of Section 113 of the Act, and rules made thereunder, the Members who are Body 
Corporate(s) are entitled to appoint their authorised representatives to attend the AGM through 
VC/OAVM and participate and cast their votes through remote e-Voting and e-Voting during the 
6th AGM of the Company. 

 
6. Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send 

a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body resolution/authorization etc., with 
attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) authorizing its representative to 
attend the AGM through VC / OAVM on its behalf and to vote through the remote e-Voting and e-Voting 
during AGM, to the Scrutinizer by email through its registered email address to 
niravshah6272@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com 

 
7. The quorum for the AGM, as provided in Section 103 of the Act, is five (5) members (including a duly 
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authorized representative of a body corporate) and Members present in the meeting through VC/OAVM 
shall be counted for the purpose of quorum pursuant to MCA Circulars and other applicable circulars. 

 
8. Dispatch of Annual Report through E-mail  

In accordance with the MCA Circulars and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFDPoD- 2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated 
October 3, 2024 issued by SEBI, the Notice of the 6th AGM along with the Annual Report of the Company 
for the financial year ended 31 March 2025 are being sent only through electronic mode (e-mail) to 
those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company or the Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent (“RTA”) or with their respective Depository Participant/s (DPs) as on Friday, 27th June, 
2025.  
 
Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 March 2025 is 
also available on the Company’s website www.piotexindustries.com, websites of the Stock Exchanges 
i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and the AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL 
(agency for providing the remote e-Voting facility) at www.evoting.nsdl.com. The Company will also 
be sending printed copies of the Annual Report 2024- 25 to the shareholders on receipt of specific 
requests. 

 
9. Only registered members of the Company as on the cut-off date decided for the purpose, being 

Tuesday, 22nd July, 2025, may attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting as provided under 
the provisions of the Companies Act. 
 

10. Updation of PAN and KYC details  
 

Physical Holding:  
SEBI vide its Circular March 16, 2023 subsequently rescinded due to issuance of Master Circular dated 
May 17, 2023 and amended by November 17, 2023, and further amended by Master Circular dated May 
07, 2024, mandated that the security holders (holding securities in physical form), whose folio(s) do 
not have PAN or Choice of nomination or Contact Details or Mobile Number or Bank Account Details or 
Specimen Signature updated, shall be eligible for any payment including dividend, in respect of such 
folios only through electronic mode with effect from 01 April 2024 upon completion/submission of the 
requisite documents/details in entirety.  
 
In case of any query / assistance, Members are requested to contact the Company’s RTA, M/s. Cameo 
Corporate Services Limited 
No.01, Club House Road, Mount Road, Chennai-600002, India, Tel. Number: 044 40020700/28460390, 
Email: sivaram@cameoindia.com  
 
Demat Holding:  
Update the PAN and KYC (i.e. postal address with pin code, email address, mobile number, bank 
account details) through your Depository Participants (DPs).  
 
The Company has sent reminders to those shareholders whose bank details are not available with the 
RTA, requesting them to update KYC to enable the Company for payment of dividend. The Company, 
before processing the request for payment of Unclaimed / Unpaid Dividend, has been in practice 
obtaining necessary particulars of Bank Account of the Payee. 

 
11. Nomination facilities 

Section 72 of the Act read with Rule 19(1) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, 
provides for the facility of nomination to security holders of the Company. This facility is mainly useful 
in the case of those holders who hold their shares in their own name. Investors are advised to avail of 
this facility to avoid any complication in the process of transmission, in case of death of the holders. 
Where more than one person holds the securities of a company jointly, the joint holders may together 
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nominate, in the prescribed manner, any person to whom all the rights in the securities shall vest in 
the event of death of all the joint holders. In case the shares are held in physical mode, the nomination 
form may be obtained from the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. In case of shares held in Demat form, 
such nomination is to be conveyed to the DP as per the formats prescribed by them. In this connection, 
shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested to update their Nomination details, if not 
provided earlier to Cameo Corporate Services Limited, the RTA of the Company. 
 

12. Dispute Resolution Mechanism (SMART ODR):  
In order to strengthen the dispute resolution mechanism for all disputes between a listed company 
and/or registrars & transfer agents and its shareholder(s)/ investor(s), SEBI had issued a Standard 
Operating Procedure (‘SOP’) vide Circular dated May 30, 2022. As per this Circular, 
shareholder(s)/investor(s) can opt for Stock Exchange Arbitration Mechanism for resolution of their 
disputes against the Company or its RTA. Further, SEBI vide Circular dated July 31, 2023 (updated as 
on December 20, 2023), introduced the Online Dispute Resolution (ODR) Portal. Through this ODR 
portal, the aggrieved party can initiate the mechanism, after exercising the primary options to resolve 
its issue, directly with the Company and through the SEBI Complaint Redress System (SCORES) 
platform. The Company has complied with the above circulars. The SMART ODR Portal can be accessed 
at: https://smartodr.in/login.  
 

13. Dematerialisation of physical shares:  
Members may please note that in view of the proviso to Regulation 40(1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 
securities of listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialised form (DEMAT) with effect from 
1 April 2019. Dematerialisation of shares would help to eliminate risks associated with Physical Shares. 
In this regard, SEBI has clarified by a Press Release No. 12/2019 dated 27 March 2019, that the said 
amendments do not prohibit an investor from holding the shares in physical mode and the investor has 
the option of holding shares in physical mode even after 1 April 2019. However, any investor who is 
desirous of transferring shares (which are held in physical mode) after 1 April 2019 can do so only after 
the shares are dematerialized.  
 
As per the SEBI mandate, the Company shall issue ‘letter of confirmation(s)’ in lieu of physical 
securities certificate(s) while processing shareholders’ requests such as, transmission, transposition, 
subdivision, consolidation, renewal, exchange and change/deletion of names of shareholders. The 
securities holders/claimants are required to apply for dematerialization of securities on the basis of 
the ‘letter of confirmation(s)’ within a period of 120 days from the date of its issuance. 

 
14. Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 

dated January 25, 2022 has mandated the listed companies to issue securities in demat form only while 
processing service requests viz. issue of duplicate securities certificate, claim from unclaimed 
suspense account, renewal/ exchange of securities certificate, endorsement, sub-division/ splitting of 
securities certificate, consolidation of securities certificates/folios, transmission and transposition. 
Accordingly, Members are requested to make service requests by submitting a duly filled in and signed 
Form ISR – 4. The said form can be downloaded from the Company’s website, 
www.piotexindustries.com.   

 
15. Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint names in the 

same order of names are requested to send the share certificates to the Company’s RTA for 
consolidation into a single folio. 

 
16. The Board has appointed CS Nirav Shah, Practicing Company Secretary (ACS: 39412; C.P. 27102), as 

the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting process and also e-voting during the meeting in a fair 
and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of e-voting at the 6th AGM, first 
download the votes cast at the AGM and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-Voting 
system and shall make a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report. 
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17. The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website 

www.piotexindustries.com and on the website of the NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately 
after declaration. The Company shall simultaneously forward the results to BSE Limited, where the 
shares of the Company are listed. 

 
18. The scanned copies of the relevant documents referred to in the accompanying notice/explanatory 

statement will be made available at www.piotexindustries.com for inspection by the Members at the 
AGM, up to the date of this AGM.  

 
During the AGM, the scanned copy of Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their 
Shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Act, the Register of Contracts or arrangements in 
which Directors are interested under Section 189 of the Act, and the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company shall be available for inspection upon login to NSDL e-Voting system at 
www.evoting.nsdl.com 
 

19. Mr. Mahendra Rajpoot, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company shall be responsible 
for addressing all the grievances in relation to this AGM including e-Voting. 
 

20. Details as required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and revised Secretarial 
Standards on General Meeting (SS-2) with respect to Director seeking appointment and re-appointment 
at ensuing AGM is given to this Notice. 

 
21. Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM facility, the Attendance slip, and Route Map are not 

annexed to this Notice. 
 

VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS  
 
1. In view of the relaxation provided by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide its General Circulars 

Nos. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, and 
subsequent circulars issued in this regard, (‘MCA Circulars’), the physical attendance of the Members 
at the EGM/AGM venue is not required and general meeting be held through video conferencing (VC) 
or other audio-visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate in the AGM through 
VC/OAVM.  
 

2. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time 
of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility 
of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come 
first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more 
shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the 
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on 
account of first come first served basis.  
 

3. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose 
of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER: 
 
The remote e-voting period begins on 25th July, 2025 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 27th July, 2025 at 05:00 
P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose 
names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 
Tuesday, 22nd July, 2025, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in 
proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 
Tuesday, 22nd July, 2025. 
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How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned 
below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile 
number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of shareholders  Login Method

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” 
icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will 
prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After 
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services 
under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-
Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 
re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period If you are not registered for IDeAS e-
Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  
Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number 
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on 
the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period.  

3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for 
seamless voting experience. 
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Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through 
their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to 
reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to 
login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab 
and then user your existing my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companies where the e-voting is in progress 
as per the information provided by company. On clicking the e-voting 
option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting 
service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system 
of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting 
service providers’ website directly. 
 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New 
System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user 
by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the 
e-Voting option where the e-voting is in progress and also able to 
directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in 
demat mode) login 
through their depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 
your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. 
upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting 
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name 
or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID 
and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related 
to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000. 

 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free 
no. 1800 22 55 33

 

 
B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?
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1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  
2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 

under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 
3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification 

Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices 
after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your 
vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below: 
 
Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client 
ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and 
EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login 
and cast your vote. 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 
password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you 
need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 

password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open 
the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, 
last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical 
form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for 
those shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your 
password: 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account 

with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available 

on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request 

at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your 
name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the 
e-Voting system of NSDL 
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7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check 
box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are 

holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status. 
2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 
3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 
4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of 

shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 
prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  
6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 

confirmation page. 
7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned 
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested 
specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the 
Scrutinizer by e-mail to niravshah6272@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. 
Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board 
Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / 
Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care 
to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five 
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through 
the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and 
e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com 
or call on : 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre at evoting@nsdl.com  

 
Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring 
user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 
 
1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy 

of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to office@piotex.in. 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16-digit DPID + CLID or 16-digit 
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to office@piotex.in. 
If you are an Individual shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to 
the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id and 
password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
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account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update 
their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
22. The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to the paid-up value of their shares in the 

equity capital of the Company as on the cut-off date (i.e., the record date), being Tuesday, 22nd 
July, 2025. 
 

23. The Board of Directors has appointed CS Nirav Shah, Practicing Company Secretary (ACS: 39412; C.P. 
27102), as a Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 

 
24. The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding two (2) working days from the conclusion of the 

e-voting period issue a Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes cast in favor or against, if any, forthwith 
to the Chairman of the meeting. 

 
25. The Results on resolutions shall be declared at or after the AGM of the Company and the resolutions 

will be deemed to be passed on the Annual General Meeting date subject to receipt of the requisite 
number of votes in favour of the Resolution. 

 
26. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report(s) will be available on the website of the 

Company (www.piotexindustries.com) within two (2) days of passing of the resolutions and 
communication of the same shall be made to BSE Limited, where the shares of the Company are 
listed. 

 
27. Redressal of complaints of Investor: The Company has designated an e-mail id: office@piotex.in 

to enable Investors to register their Complaints, if any. 

 

 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

 

Item No. 2: 

Additional Disclosures as required under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards-2 are as under: 
 

Name of Director and DIN Mr. Sandeep Vitthalrao Deore (DIN: 05138825) 

Date of Birth 18/10/1983 

Date of Initial Appointment 30/11/2021 

Date of Appointment (at current term) 30/09/2022 

Educational Qualifications bachelor of Engineering 

Brief Resume and nature of expertise in specific 
functional area 

Mr. Sandeep Vitthalrao Deore, aged 42 years, is the 
Non-Executive Director of our Company. He holds 
degree in bachelor of Engineering. He was originally 
appointed on the Board on November 30, 2021 and 
further designated as the Non-Executive Director of 
the Company on September 30, 2022. He is having of 
experience of 14 years. 

Directorships held in other companies 
(excluding foreign companies, Section 8 
companies and Struck off Companies and our 
Company) 

1. Tvish Realty Private Limited 
2. Adhrit Textiles Private Limited 
3. Jijau Realty Private Limited 
4. Simoni Textile Private Limited 
5. Aakarshan Tex Fab Private Limited 
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Name of Director and DIN Mr. Sandeep Vitthalrao Deore (DIN: 05138825) 

Memberships / Chairmanships of committees of 
other public companies 

Nil 

Number of meetings of the Board attended 5 Board Meeting attended 

Terms and conditions of appointment/re- 
appointment along with details of remuneration 
sought to be paid 

He was originally appointed on the Board on 
November 30, 2021 and further designated as the 
Non-Executive Director of the Company on 
September 30, 2022. 

Remuneration last drawn Nil 

Shareholding in the Company: 0 Number of Equity Shares as on 31/03/2025 

Inter-se Relationship with other Directors Nil 

 

Item No. 3: 
 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) vide SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
(Third Amendment) Regulations, 2024 dated December 12, 2024, has amended Regulation 24A of SEBI Listing 
Regulations. As per the said amendment to Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations, which came into 
effect from 01 April 2025, the appointment of Secretarial Auditor shall be approved by the Members at the 
AGM of the Company and the tenure of the Secretarial Auditor in case of an individual Company Secretary 
in Practice, should be for a maximum of one (1) term of five (5) consecutive years or in case of a Firm of 
Company Secretaries in Practice, for a maximum of two (2) terms of five (5) consecutive years. However, 
any association of the individual or the firm as the Secretarial Auditor of the listed entity before 31 March 
2025 shall not be considered for the purpose of calculating the tenure under Regulation 24A of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations. 
 
Pursuant to the above requirement, the Board at its meeting held on 30th May, 2025, considering the 
experience and expertise and based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has proposed to the 
Members of the Company the appointment of “M/s Nirav Shah & Associates”, Company Secretaries (FRN: 
S2024GJ962800) a peer reviewed firm, as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a period of five consecutive 
financial years, i.e. from financial year 2025-26 to financial year 2029-30 in terms of Regulation 24A of the 
SEBI Listing Regulations and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD–PoD–2/CIR/P/ 2024/185 dated December 
31, 2024 (“SEBI Circular”) read with provisions of Section 204 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. The appointment is subject to 
shareholders’ approval at the AGM. 
 
After evaluating proposals and considering various factors such as independence, industry experience, 
technical skills, etc., M/s Nirav Shah & Associates, has been recommended to be appointed as the 
Secretarial Auditors of the Company. The authority to decide the remuneration for the balance period of 
the tenure has been delegated to the Board of Directors which shall be decided mutually by them and the 
secretarial auditor. 
 
The Company has received written consent from M/s Nirav Shah & Associates and a certificate that they 
satisfy the qualification criteria provided under SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 
dated December 31, 2024 (“SEBI Circular”) and that the appointment, if made, shall be in accordance with 
the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules framed thereunder, SEBI Listing Regulations, SEBI Circular and 
other applicable circulars, if any, in this regard. The firm has agreed to the said appointment, and confirmed 
that their appointment, if made, would be within the limits specified under the Act. They have further 
confirmed that they are eligible for the proposed appointment as Secretarial Auditor of the Company and 
have not incurred any of the disqualifications as specified vide the said SEBI Circular 
 
While recommending M/s Nirav Shah & Associates for appointment, the Board and the Audit Committee 
evaluated various factors, including the firm’s capability to handle a complex business environment, its 
existing experience in the Company’s business segments, its industry standing, the clientele it serves, and 
its technical expertise. M/s Nirav Shah & Associates was found to be well-equipped to manage the scale, 
diversity, and complexity associated with the Secretarial Audit of the Company. 
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Brief Profile & Credentials:  
 
“M/s Nirav Shah & Associates” is a firm of Practicing Company Secretaries led by CS Nirav Shah, Practicing 
Company Secretary. Mr. Shah is a member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and is having 
more than 10 years of extensive experience in company law, SEBI matters, capital markets, corporate 
restructuring, business planning and other gamut of corporate affairs.  
 
Terms of Appointment:  
 
Appointment is proposed for a period of 5 (five) consecutive financial years, i.e. from financial year 2025- 
26 to financial year 2029-30, subject to approval of the Members of the Company in the forthcoming 11th 
AGM of the Company, as Secretarial Auditor of the Company at a remuneration to be mutually decided by 
Board with Secretarial Auditor, for each financial year subject to revision as mutually agreed between the 
Board and the Secretarial Auditors in due course during the tenure of appointment. The proposed fees are 
determined based on knowledge, expertise, industry experience, time and efforts required to be put in by 
them, which is in line with the industry benchmarks. 
 
Considering the expertise and profile of the firm, the resolution for appointment of the firm is proposed for 
approval of the members of the Company. 
 
Additional fees for statutory certifications and other professional services will be determined separately by 
the management, in consultation with the Secretarial Auditor and will be subject to approval by the Board 
of Directors and/or the Audit Committee. The remuneration for the subsequent years from 2026-27 to 2029-
30 will also be approved by the Board and/ or the Audit Committee. 
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel and/ or their relatives in any way, financially or 
otherwise, is interested or deemed to be interested in the proposed resolution. 
 
The Board recommends passing of the Resolution as set out under Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval by 
the Members of the Company as an Ordinary Resolution. 
 
Item No. 4: 

The Board of Directors of the Company, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) appointed Mr. Vijendra Kamalrao Deshmukh (DIN: 08510913) as an 
Additional Director under category Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f. June 30, 2025 
subject to the approval of shareholders. 
 
In terms of Section 161 of the Act, an Additional Director shall hold office up to the date of the 
next annual general meeting or the last date on which the annual general meeting should have been 
held, whichever is earlier. Further, in terms of Regulation 17(1C) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entity shall ensure that approval of Members for 
appointment of a person on the Board of Directors is taken at the next general meeting or within a 
time period of three months from the date of appointment, whichever is earlier. 
 
The Company has received a notice under Section 160 of the Act from a Member proposing the 
candidature of his appointment as a Director of the Company. 

 
Additional Disclosures as required under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards-2 are as under: 
 

Name of Director and DIN Mr. Vijendra Kamalrao Deshmukh (DIN: 08510913) 

Date of Birth 28/01/1980 

Date of Initial Appointment 30/06/2025 

Date of Appointment (at current term) 30/06/2025 

Educational Qualifications Bachelor of Engineering 
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Name of Director and DIN Mr. Vijendra Kamalrao Deshmukh (DIN: 08510913) 

Brief Resume and nature of expertise in specific 
functional area 

Mr. Vijendra Kamalrao Deshmukh is having more than 
20 years of experience in the field of managing various 
small and big projects of various brands and MNC’s as 
an Engineer and also as a consultant. He is also 
providing property consultancy to corporate. 

Directorships held in other companies (excluding 
foreign companies, Section 8 companies and 
Struck off Companies and our Company) 

CTA Consultants (OPC) Private Limited 

Memberships / Chairmanships of committees of 
other public companies 

Nil 

Number of meetings of the Board attended Nil 

Terms and conditions of appointment/re- 
appointment along with details of remuneration 
sought to be paid 

He was originally appointed on the Board on June 
30, 2025 as an additional Independent Director for 
a term of 5 years. 

Remuneration last drawn Nil 

Shareholding in the Company: 0 Number of Equity Shares as on 31/03/2025 

Inter-se Relationship with other Directors Nil 

 
Whilst considering the appointment of Mr. Vijendra Kamalrao Deshmukh (DIN: 08510913) as a Director, 
the NRC and the Board reviewed and confirmed that: 

 He is a fit and proper person to be appointed as a Director of the Company. 
 He is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director of the Company, in terms of Section 

164 of the Act and has given her consent to act as a Director of the Company. In the opinion of 
the Board, He fulfils the conditions relating to her appointment as prescribed under the 
relevant provisions of the Act, the relevant rules notified thereunder, the SEBI Listing 
Regulations, in this regard from time to time. 

 He is not debarred from holding the office of Director by virtue of any order by SEBI or any 
other authority; and 

 He has the requisite qualification, skills, experience and expertise in functional areas viz. 
corporate strategy and business transformation. 

 

Mr. Vijendra Kamalrao Deshmukh (DIN: 08510913) not related to any other Director or Key Managerial 
Personnel and shall not be liable to retire by rotation. 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel and/ or their relatives in any way, financially or 
otherwise, is interested or deemed to be interested in the proposed resolution. 
 
The Board recommends passing of the Resolution as set out under Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval 
by the Members of the Company as an Ordinary Resolution. 

 
 
 For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Piotex Industries Limited 
 
 
 

 
Date: 30th June, 2025 
Place: Pune  

Mr. Abhay Shriram Asalkar
Managing Director 

DIN: 06851614 

Mr. Yogesh Omprakash 
Nimodiya 

   Executive Director 
DIN: 06851606
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

Dear Shareholders, 
 
The Board of Directors hereby submits the report of the business and operations of your Company (“the 
Company”), along with the Standalone Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended on 31st 

March, 2025. 
 
FINANCIAL RESULTS: 
The Company’s financial performance for the year ended on 31stMarch, 2025 is summarized below: 

         (In Lakhs) 

PARTICULARS 
Standalone 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024
I. Net Sales/Income from Operations 13435.66 11845.92
II. Other Income 34.41 47.96
III. Total Revenue (I+II) 13470.07 11893.88
IV. Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization 

Expense 
499.29 428.84

V. Finance Cost 47.86 24.65
VI. Depreciation and Amortization Expense 2.08 2.23
VII. Profit Before Tax (IV-V-VI) 449.35 401.96
VIII. Tax Expense:  

Less: Current Tax Expense 115.76 101.29
Less: Deferred Tax  (2.67) (0.12)
         Short Provision for tax - - 
Profit After Tax (VII-VIII) 336.26 300.80

 
DIVIDEND: 
For the Financial Year 2024-25, based on the Company’s performance, the Board of Directors have not 
recommended any dividend. 
 
TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 
During the year, the Company has not transferred any amount to Reserve and Surplus.  
 
BUSINESS DESCRIPTION: 
We are into the business of contract manufacturing and trading of yarn, fabric and cotton bales. Our 
Products are used for various purposes such as garments & home furnishings, etc. We engage in trading of 
cotton bales. We also manufacture cotton yarn through out-sourcing model (Job-work) which are almost 
always in demand by the garment manufacturing industry. 
 
CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS: 
During the year, your Company has not changed its business or object and continues to be in the same line 
of business as per main object of the Company. 
 
THE REGISTERED OFFICE: 
The registered office of the company is situated at F/II Block, Plot No. 16/2, M.I.D.C., Pimpri, Pune 
Maharashtra - 411018, India. 
 
SHARE CAPITAL: 
During the year under review, the authorized and paid-up share capital of the Company are as follows: 
 
 AUTHORIZED CAPITAL: 
 The Authorised Capital of the Company is ₹ 8,50,00,000/- divided into 85,00,000 Equity Shares of ₹ 10/- 

(Rupees Ten Only) each. During the Financial year, the Company has not increased the authorized Share 
capital of the Company. 

 
 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID-UP CAPITAL: 
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 As on 31st March, 2025, the issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Company is ₹ 5,10,36,000/- 
divided into 51,03,600 Equity Shares of ₹ 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each.  

 
During the Financial year, the Company has increased issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the 
Company as per table below. 
 
Sr No Date of Allotment No. of equity Shares allotted Issue Price Nature of 

Allotment 
1 15/05/2024 15,39,600 Rs. 94 Initial Public 

Offering 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 
 
As on the date of this report, the Board comprises of following Directors and Key Managerial Personnel; 

Name of Director Designation 

Date of 
Original 

Appointmen
t

Date of 
Resignation No. of Shares 

held as on 
31stMarch, 2025 

Mr. Abhay Shriram Asalkar Chairman cum 
Managing Director 24/10/2019 

-- 16,82,670
Equity Shares

Mr. Yogesh Omprakash 
Nimodiya 

Executive Director 
and CFO 

24/10/2019 
& 

25/08/2023

-- 16,82,670 
Equity Shares 

Mr. Sandeep Vitthalrao Deore  
  

Non-Executive 
Director 30/11/2021 -- Nil 

Mr. Sandeep Narayanrao Deore  
 

Non-Executive 
Independent 

Director
15/09/2023 

--
Nil 

Mrs. Bhavisha Kunal Chauhan  
 

Non-Executive 
Independent 

Director
15/09/2023 

--
Nil 

Mr. Mahendra Singh Rajpoot Company Secretary 
and Compliance 

Officer
20/09/2023 

--
Nil 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the 
Company, Mr. Sandeep Vitthalrao Deore will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of 
the Company and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
 
None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified under the provisions of Section 164(2) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
DISCLOSURE BY DIRECTORS:  
The Directors on the Board have submitted notice of interest under Section 184(1) i.e. in Form MBP 1, 
intimation under Section 164(2) i.e. in Form DIR 8, List of relatives and declaration as to compliance with 
the Code of Conduct of the Company.  
 
BOARD MEETING: 
Regular meetings of the Board are held at least once in a quarter. Additional Board meetings are convened, 
as and when require, to discuss and decide on various business policies, strategies and other businesses. 
The Board meetings are generally held at the registered office of the Company. 
 
During the year under review, Board of Directors of the Company met 5 times. Details of Meeting and their 
attendance as below: 
 
Date of Board 
Meeting 

 Name of Director
Mr. Abhay 
Shriram 
Asalkar 

Mr. Yogesh 
Omprakash 
Nimodiya

Mr. Sandeep 
Vitthalrao 

Deore

Mr. Sandeep 
Narayanrao 

Deore

Mrs. Bhavisha 
Kunal Chauhan 

15/04/2024 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
14/05/2024 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
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07/09/2024 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
12/11/2024 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
07/03/2025 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

 
The meetings of the Board of the Companies within the intervals provided in section 173 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (120 days) were compiled between two Board Meetings. 
 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 
The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director under Section 149 (7) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 that they meet the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149 (6) of the 
Act. A separate meeting of Independent Directors was held to review the performance of Non-Independent 
Directors and Board as whole and performance of Chairperson of the Company including assessment of 
quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between Company management and Board. 
 
The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors and Code for Independent Director are 
incorporated on the website of the Company viz. www.piotexindustries.com. 
 
DETAILS OF KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 
In terms of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Abhay Shriram Asalkar is Managing Director, Mr. 
Yogesh Omprakash Nimodiya is Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Mahendra Singh Rajpoot is a Company 
Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company. 
 
UTILIZATION OF FUND RAISED FROM INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING: 
During the period under review, the Company has raised moneys by way of Initial public Offering by issuing 
15,39,600 equity shares of ₹ 10 each at a premium of ₹ 84 per share. The money as raised have been applied 
for the purposes for which those are raised till March 31, 2025 as follows: 

(₹ in Lakhs) 

 
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION: 
The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance board committees and 
individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act. The performance of the board was evaluated by 
the board after seeking inputs from all the directors on the basis of the criteria such as the board 
composition and structure effectiveness of board processes information and functioning etc. 
 
The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the committee 
members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee 
meetings etc. In addition, the performance of chairman was also evaluated on the key aspects of his role.  
 
The Board has reviewed the performance of the individual Directors on the basis of the criteria such as the 
contribution of the individual Director to the Board and Committee Meetings like preparedness on the issues 
to be discussed meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings etc.  
 
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 
Pursuant to section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013; the Board of Directors to the best of their knowledge 
and ability confirm that: 
a) In preparation of Annual Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2025; the applicable accounting 

standards have been followed and that no material departures have been made from the same; 
b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and have made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state 

S. No. Object of the Issue Amount
allotted 
for the 
object

Amount 
utilized till 

March 
31, 2025 

Amount
unutilized till 

March 31, 
2025

1 To meet working capital requirement of our
company 

1051.05 1051.05 Nil

2 General Corporate Purposes 270.92 270.92 Nil

3 Issue related Expenses 125.25 125.25 Nil

Total 1447.22 1447.22 Nil
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of affairs of the Company at the end of the Financial Year and of the profit or loss of the Company for 
that year; 

c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) The Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2025 on going concern 
basis; 

e) The Directors have laid down the internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that 
such Internal Financial Controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 

f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 
COMMITTEE OF BOARD: 
The Board of Directors in line with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 has formed various 
committees, details of which are given hereunder: 
 
A. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

NAME 
Category 

DESIGNATION
Attendance at the Audit Committee Meetings held on
15/04/2024 07/08/2024 09/11/2024 03/03/2025

Mr. Sandeep 
Narayanrao 
Deore 

Non-
Executive 
Independent 
Director 

Chairman Yes Yes Yes Yes

Mrs. Bhavisha 
Kunal Chauhan 

Non-
Executive 
Independent 
Director 

Member Yes Yes Yes Yes

Mr. Yogesh 
Omprakash 
Nimodiya  

Executive 
Director 

Member Yes Yes Yes Yes

 
Vigil Mechanism: 
The Company has established a vigil mechanism and accordingly framed a Whistle Blower Policy. The policy 
enables the employees to report to the management instances of unethical behavior actual or suspected 
fraud or violation of Company’s Code of Conduct.  
 
Further the mechanism adopted by the Company encourages the Whistle Blower to report genuine concerns 
or grievances and provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of the Whistle Blower who avails 
of such mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in 
exceptional cases. The functioning of vigil mechanism is reviewed by the Audit Committee from time to 
time. None of the Whistle blowers has been denied access to the Audit Committee of the Board. The Whistle 
Blower Policy of the Company is available on the website of the Company. 
 
B. STAKEHOLDER’S RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 
 

NAME 

Category 

DESIGNATION 

Attendance at the 
Stakeholder’s 
Relationship 

Committee Meetings 
held on 

03/03/2025
Mr. Sandeep 
Narayanrao 
Deore 

Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Chairman Yes 

Mrs. Bhavisha 
Kunal Chauhan 

Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Member Yes 

Mr. Abhay 
Shriram Asalkar 

Managing Director Member Yes 

 
C. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 
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NAME 

Category 

DESIGNATION

Attendance at the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee Meetings 

held on 
15/04/024 

Mr. Sandeep 
Narayanrao Deore 

Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Chairman Yes 

Mrs. Bhavisha 
Kunal Chauhan 

Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Member Yes 

Mr. Sandeep 
Vitthalrao Deore  

Non-Executive Director Member Yes 

 
CODE OF CONDUCT 
Pursuant to the provisions of Regulations 8 & 9 of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, 
the Board of Directors has formulated, implemented and has in place a comprehensive “Code of Fair 
Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information” & “Code of Conduct for Prevention of the Insider 
Trading” for regulating, monitoring and reporting the trading by Designated persons of the Company which 
exemplifies the spirit of good ethics and governance and is applicable to the Designated personnel of the 
Company which includes Promoters, Promoter Group, Key Managerial Personnel’s, Directors, Senior 
Management and such other employees of the Company and others in fiduciary relationships and as may be 
approved by the Board of Directors, from time to time, based on the fact of having access to unpublished 
price sensitive information. The referred Code(s) lays down guidelines advising the Designated Personnel 
on procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made while dealing with the securities of the Company. 
 
Further, the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of 
conduct. A declaration with regards to compliance with the Code of Conduct for the Financial Year 2024-
2025 has been received by the Company from the Managing Director. 
 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY: 
Nomination and Remuneration Policy in the Company is designed to create a high-performance culture. It 
enables the Company to attract motivated and retained manpower in competitive market, and to harmonize 
the aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals of the Company. The Company pays 
remuneration by way of salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances to its Executive Directors and Key 
Managerial Personnel.  
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is placed on the website of the Company and is annexed to this 
Report as Annexure – A. 
 
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS: 
During the financial year, the Directors have drawn salary as mentioned in Annexure F. 
 
PUBLIC DEPOSIT: 
The company has not accepted any deposits from the public. Hence the directives issued by the Reserve 
Bank of India & the Provision of Section 73 to 76 of the Company Act 2013 or any other relevant provisions 
of the Act and the Rules there under are not applicable. 
 
PARTICULARS OF LOANS GUARANTEES INVESTMENTS & SECURITY: 
Details of Loans Guarantees Investments and Security covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statement and the same is complied. 
 
ANNUAL RETURN: 
Pursuant to the amendments to Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Act read with Rule 12 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return (Form MGT-7) for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2025, is available on the Company’s website viz. www.piotexindustries.com. 
 
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY: 
During the year under review, the Company does not have any subsidiary Company. 
 
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE OF THE COMPANY: 
During the year under review, the Company does not have any Associate or Joint Venture.  
 
CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES: 
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During the financial year 2024-25, there was no materially significant related party transaction undertaken 
by the Company under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed there under and 
Regulation 23 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 that may have potential conflict with the interest of the 
Company. Disclosure on related party transactions is annexed to the financial statement of the Company 
in AOC-2 attached as Annexure B. 
 
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT: 
There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have 
occurred between the ends of Financial Year of the Company i.e. 31st March, 2025 to the date of this Report 
other than as stated above. 
 
SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS: 
There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals which impact 
the going concern status and the Company’s operations in future. 
 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE: 
To foster a positive workplace environment free from harassment of any nature we have framed Prevention 
of Sexual Harassment Policy through which we address complaints of sexual harassment at all workplaces 
of the Company. Our policy assures discretion and guarantees non-retaliation to complainants. We follow a 
gender-neutral approach in handling complaints of sexual harassment and we are compliant with the law 
of the land where we operate. 
 
Number of sexual harassment complaints received- Nil 
Number of sexual harassment complaints Disposed-off during the year- Nil  
Number of sexual harassment cases pending for a period exceeding ninety days- Nil 
 
ENERGY CONSERVATION TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 
The information on conservation of energy technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 as 
amended from time to time is annexed to this Report as Annexure - C. 
 
SECRETARIAL STANDARDS OF ICSI: 
The Company is in compliance with the Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) 
and General Meeting (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the 
Central Government. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT: 
A well-defined risk management mechanism covering the risk mapping and trend analysis risk exposure 
potential impact and risk mitigation process is in place. The objective of the mechanism is to minimize the 
impact of risks identified and taking advance actions to mitigate it. The mechanism works on the principles 
of probability of occurrence and impact if triggered. A detailed exercise is being carried out to identify 
evaluate monitor and manage both business and non-business risks. 
 
MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORD 
During the Financial Year 2024-25, the Company is not required to maintain cost records as specified by the 
Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
LISTING 
The Equity Shares of the Company remain listed on "BSE Limited". The Company has already paid the annual 
listing fees for the Financial Year 2024-2025 to maintain its listing status on BSE Limited. In addition to that, 
the Company has also paid the Annual Custody Charges for the Financial Year 2024- 2025 to National 
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). 
 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 
The Company has adequate and efficient internal and external control system, which provides protection 
to all its assets against loss from unauthorized use and ensures correct reporting of transactions. The 
internal control systems are further supplemented by internal audits carried out by the respective Internal 
Auditors of the Company and Periodical review by the management. The Company has put in place proper 
controls, which are reviewed at regular intervals to ensure that transactions are properly authorised, 
correctly reported and assets are safeguarded. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 
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Integrity and transparency are key factors to our corporate governance practices to ensure that we achieve 
and will retain the trust of our stakeholders at all times. Corporate governance is about maximizing 
shareholder value legally, ethically and sustainably. Our Board exercises its fiduciary responsibilities in the 
widest sense of the term. Our disclosures seek to attain the best practices in international corporate 
governance. We also endeavor to enhance long-term shareholder value and respect minority rights in all 
our business decisions. 
 
The Company is listed on BSE SME Platform. Hence, filing of Corporate Governance report for the year 
ended March 31, 2025 is not applicable to Company. 
 
STATUTORY AUDITOR AND THEIR REPORT: 
At the 5th Annual General Meeting held on May 08, 2024, the members approved appointment of M/s. S V J 
K And Associates, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad (Registration No. 135182W) as Statutory Auditors of 
the Company to hold office for a period of five years from the conclusion of 5th AGM up to the conclusion 
of 10th AGM. The Board has taken note and M/s. S V J K And Associates, Chartered Accountants, have 
confirmed their eligibility under section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder 
as Statutory Auditors of the Company. As required under Listing Regulations, the Auditors have also 
confirmed that they hold a valid certificate issued by the peer review Board of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.  
 
There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by the auditors in their 
report on the financial statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025. The notes 
on the Financial Statements referred to in the Auditors' Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any 
comments or explanations.  
 
INTERNAL AUDITOR 
The Board of Directors has officially appointed Mr. Salim Makandar, Chief Accountant, an employee of the 
Company as an Internal Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-2025 to conduct the Internal 
Audit of the Company. This strategic decision demonstrates our commitment to upholding and enhancing 
proper and effective internal financial control.  
 
With his expertise and experience, Mr. Salim Makandar plays a crucial role in evaluating and improving our 
internal financial processes and systems. 
 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT: 
In terms of Regulation 34 and Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015 a review of the performance of the Company for the year under review Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report is presented in a separate section which is annexed to this Report as 
Annexure - D. 
 
SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND THEIR REPORT: 
The Board of Directors has officially appointed M/s. Nirav Shah & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary 
to serve as the Secretarial Auditor for out esteemed Company for Financial Year 2024-25. The Secretarial 
Audit Report received from M/s. Nirav Shah & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, is attached 
herewith as ANNEXURE – E.  
 
The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification reservation or adverse remark. 
 
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES U/S 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
The Information & Statement of Particulars of employees pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Rule 5 (1) & 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 is annexed to this report as Annexure – F. 
 
REPORTING OF FRAUD: 
The Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud as specified under Section 143(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 
The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility Initiatives as 
provisions of section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. 
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WEBSITE: 
As per Regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 the Company 
has maintained a functional website containing basic information about the Company. The website of the 
Company is containing information like Policies, Shareholding Pattern, Financial and information of the 
designated officials of the Company who are responsible for assisting and handling investor grievances for 
the benefit of all stakeholders of the Company etc. 
 
ADHERENCE TO STATUTORY COMPLIANCES 
During the Financial Year under review, the Company diligently adhered to all the relevant statutory 
compliances of the Act, Listing Regulations, Secretarial Standards issued by ICSI, and other laws, provisions, 
and Acts that are applicable to the Company. This unwavering commitment to compliance ensures that the 
Company operates within the legal framework, maintaining transparency and accountability in its 
operations. By upholding these standards, the Company strives to build trust among its stakeholders while 
fostering a culture of responsible corporate governance. 
 
MATERNITY BENEFIT COMPLIANCE 
The Company has complied with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, as amended from time 
to time. Adequate facilities and support, including paid maternity leave and nursing breaks, have been 
extended to eligible women employees during the financial year. The Company remains committed to 
ensuring a safe, supportive, and inclusive workplace for all its employees. 
 
GENERAL DISCLOSURE: 
Your Directors state that the Company has made disclosures in this report for the items prescribed in section 
134 (3) of the Act and Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 and other applicable provisions of 
the act and listing regulations to the extent the transactions took place on those items during the year. 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
Your Director acknowledge the dedicated service of the employees of the Company during the year. They 
would also like to place on record their appreciation for the continued co-operation and support received 
by the Company during the year from bankers, business partners and other stakeholders. 
 
 For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Piotex Industries Limited 
 
 
 

 
Date: 30th June, 2025 
Place: Pune  

Mr. Abhay Shriram Asalkar
Managing Director 

DIN: 06851614 

Mr. Yogesh Omprakash 
Nimodiya 

   Executive Director 
DIN: 06851606 
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Annexure – A 

 

Nomination and Remuneration Policy 

Introduction: 

This policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management has been formulated by the Committee, in compliances with Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read along with applicable rules thereto. 

Objectives of the Committee: 

The Committee shall: 

i. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 
director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, key 
managerial personnel and other employees. 

ii. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of the Independent Director and to carry out evaluation of 
every Director’s performance and to provide necessary report to the Board for further evaluation. 

iii. Devising a policy on Board diversity. 

iv. Identify persons who are qualified to become Director and persons who may be appointed in Key 
Managerial and Senior Management positions in accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy. 

v. To provide to Key Managerial Personal and Senior Management reward linked directly to their effort, 
performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations. 

vi. To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented 
managerial persons and create competitive advantage. 

vii. Ensure that level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient, relationship of 
remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks. 

viii. To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced 
by any statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable. 

ix. To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its 
duties. 

x. To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the 

plan. Definitions: 

• “Act”:- Act means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under, as amended from time to 
time. 

• “Board”:-Board means Board of Directors of the Company. 

• “Director”:-Directors means Directors of the Company. 

• “Committee”:-Committee means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as 
constituted or reconstituted by the Board, from time to time. 

• “Company”:- Company means Piotex Industries Limited. 

• “Independent Director”:- As provided under the Companies Act, 2013, ‘Independent director’ shall 
mean a non-executive director, other than a nominee director of the Company: 

a. who, in the opinion of the Board, is a person of integrity and possesses relevant expertise and 
experience; 

b. (i) who is or was not a promoter of the Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company; 25



 

(ii) who is not related to promoters or directors in the company, its holding, subsidiary or 
associate company; 

c. apart from receiving director's remuneration, has or had no pecuniary relationship with the 
Company, its holding, subsidiary or associate Company, or their promoters, or directors, during the two 
immediately preceding financial years or during the current financial year; 

d. none of whose relatives has or had pecuniary relationship or transaction with the Company, its 
holding, subsidiary or associate Company, or their promoters, or directors, amounting to two percent. 
or more of its gross turnover or total income or fifty lakh rupees or such higher amount as may be 
prescribed, whichever is lower, during the two immediately preceding financial years or during the 
current financial year; 

e. who, neither himself nor any of his relatives — 

i. holds or has held the position of a key managerial personnel or is or has been employee of the 
company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company in any of the three financial years immediately 
preceding the financial year in which he is proposed to be appointed; 

ii. is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the three financial years 
immediately preceding the financial year in which he is proposed to be appointed; of- 

(A). a firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors of the company or its 
holding, subsidiary or associate Company; or 

(B). any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the Company, its holding, 
subsidiary or associate Company amounting to ten per cent or more of the gross turnover of such firm; 

iii. holds together with his relatives two per cent or more of the total voting power of the Company; or 

iv. is a Chief Executive or director, by whatever name called, of any non-profit organization that 
receives twenty-five per cent or more of its receipts from the Company, any of its promoters, directors 
or its holding, subsidiary or associate Company or that holds two per cent or more of the total voting 
power of the Company; or 

f. who possesses such other qualification as may be prescribed under the applicable statutory 
provisions/ regulations 

g. is a material supplier, service provider or customer or a lessor or lessee of the Company; 

h. who is not less than 21 years of age. 

• “Key Managerial Personnel”:- Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) means- 

(i) the Chief Executive Officer or the managing director or the manager; 

(ii) the Whole-Time Director; 

(iii) the Company Secretary; 

(iv) the Chief Financial Officer; and 

(v) such other officer as may be prescribed under the applicable statutory provisions/ regulations 

• “Senior Management”:- The expression ‘‘senior management’’ means personnel of the Company who 
are members of its core management team excluding Board of Directors comprising all members of 
management one level below the executive directors, including the functional heads. 

• “Nomination and Remuneration Committee” shall mean a Committee of Board of Directors of the 
Company, constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

• “Policy or This Policy” means, “Nomination and Remuneration Policy”. 
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• “Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services 
rendered by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961. 

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined herein 
but defined in the Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended from time to time shall have the meaning 
respectively assigned to them therein. 

Guiding Principles 

The Policy ensures that 

i. The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 
motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully. 

ii. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 

benchmarks. iii Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management 

involves a balance 
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives 
appropriate to 
the working of the Company and its goals. 

Applicability: 

The Policy is applicable to 

i. Directors (Executive and Non Executive) 

ii. Key Managerial Personnel 

iii. Senior Management Personnel 

iv. Employees 

Constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

The Board has the power to constitute/ reconstitute the Committee from time to time in order to 
make it consistent with the Company’s policy and applicable statutory requirement. At present, the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of following Directors: 

i. Mr. Sandeep Narayanrao Deore, Chairman (Non-Executive Independent Director) 

ii. Mrs. Bhavisha Kunal Chauhan, Member (Non-Executive Independent Director) 

iii. Mr. Sandeep Vitthalrao Deore, Member (Non-Executive Director) 

 

Membership: 

a. The Committee shall consist of a minimum 3 non-executive directors, majority of them being 
independent. 

b. Minimum two (2) members shall constitute a quorum for the Committee meeting. 

c. Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report. 

d. Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of Directors. 

Chairman: 

a. Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director. 

b. Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall not be a 27



 

Chairman of the Committee. 

c. In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the Committee present at the meeting shall choose 
one amongst them to act as Chairman. 

d. Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting could be present at the Annual 
General Meeting or may nominate some other member to answer the shareholders’ queries. 

Frequency of Meetings: 

The Committee shall meet at such regular intervals as may be required. 

Committee Members’ Interests: 

a. A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration is 
discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is being evaluated. 

b. The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the 
meetings of the Committee. 

Secretary: 

a. The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as Secretary of the Committee. 

Voting: 

a. Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by a majority of votes of 
Members present and voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed a decision of the 
Committee. 

b. In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote. 

General Appointment Criteria: 

i. The Committee shall consider the ethical standards of integrity and probity, qualification, expertise 
and experience of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and 
accordingly recommend to the Board his / her appointment. 

ii. The Company should ensure that the person so appointed as Director/ Independent Director/ KMP/ 
Senior Management Personnel shall not be disqualified under the Companies Act, 2013, rules made 
there under or any other enactment for the time being in force. 

iii. The Director/ Independent Director/ KMP/ Senior Management Personnel shall be appointed as per 
the procedure laid down under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, rules made there under, or 
any other enactment for the time being in force. 

iv. The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Managing 
Director/Whole-time Director/Manager who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the 
term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the 
approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed 
to the notice for such motion indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy 
years. 

Term / Tenure: 

The Term / Tenure of the Directors shall be governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
rules made there under as amended from time to time. 

1. Managing Director/Whole-time Director/Manager (Managerial Person):- The Company shall appoint 
or re-appoint any person as its Managerial Person for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re- 
appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term. 

2. Independent Director: - An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive 28



 

years on the Board of the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special 
resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's Report. No Independent 
Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such Independent Director shall be 
eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director. 
Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in 
or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly. At the time of 
appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on which such 
Independent Director serves as an Independent Director. 

Evaluation: 

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior 
Management at regular interval (yearly). 

Removal: 

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013, rules made there under 
or under any other applicable Act, rules and regulations or any other reasonable ground, the 
Committee may recommend to the Board for removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management 
Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations. 

Retirement: 

The Director, KMP and Senior Management shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to 
retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even 
after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company. 

Criteria for Evaluation of the Board: 

Following are the Criteria for evaluation of performance of the Board: 

1. Executive Directors: 

The Executive Directors shall be evaluated on the basis of targets/Criteria given to executive Directors 
by the Board from time to time 

2. Non Executive Director: 

The Non Executive Directors shall be evaluated on the basis of the following criteria i.e. whether they: 

(a) act objectively and constructively while exercising their duties; 

(b) exercise their responsibilities in a bona fide manner in the interest of the Company; 

(c) devote sufficient time and attention to their professional obligations for informed and 
balanced decision making; 

(d) do not abuse their position to the detriment of the company or its shareholders or for the purpose 
of gaining direct or indirect personal advantage or advantage for any associated person; 

(e) refrain from any action that would lead to loss of his independence 

(f) inform the Board immediately when they lose their independence, 

(g) assist the Company in implementing the best corporate governance practices. 

(h) strive to attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and the Committees; 

(i) participate constructively and actively in the committees of the Board in which they are 
chairpersons or members; 

(j) strive to attend the general meetings of the Company; 
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(k) keep themselves well informed about the Company and the external environment in which it 
operates; 

(l) do not to unfairly obstruct the functioning of an otherwise proper Board or committee of the Board; 

(m) moderate and arbitrate in the interest of the Company as a whole, in situations of conflict 
between management and shareholder’s interest. 

(n) abide by Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, Company’s policies and procedures 
including code of conduct, insider trading etc. 

Policy on Board diversity: 

The Board of Directors shall have the optimum combination of Directors from the different areas/fields 
like production, Management, Quality Assurance, Finance, Sales and Marketing, Supply chain, Research 
and Development, Human Resources etc or as may be considered appropriate. The Board shall have at 
least one Board member who has accounting or related financial management expertise and financially 
literate. 

Remuneration: 

The Committee will recommend the remuneration to be paid to the Managing Director, Whole Time 
Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel to the Board for their approval. The level and 
composition of remuneration so determined by the Committee shall be reasonable and sufficient to 
attract, retain and motivate directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the quality 
required to run the Company successfully. The relationship of remuneration to performance should be 
clear and meet appropriate performance benchmarks. The remuneration should also involve a balance 
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to 
the working of the Company and its goals: 

General: 

1. The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to Managerial Person, KMP and Senior 
Management Personnel will be determined by the Committee and recommended to the Board for 
approval. The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. shall be subject to the prior/post 
approval of the shareholders of the Company and Central Government, wherever required. 

2. The remuneration and commission to be paid to Managerial Person shall be as per the statutory 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the time being in force. 

3. Increments to the existing remuneration / compensation structure may be recommended by the 
Committee to the Board which should be within the slabs approved by the Shareholders in the case of 
Managerial Person. Increments will be effective from the date of reappointment in respect of 
Managerial Person and 1st April in respect of other employees of the Company. 

4. Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Managerial Person, KMP and any other 
employees for indemnifying them against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be 
treated as part of the remuneration payable to any such personnel. Provided that if such person is 
proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such insurance shall be treated as part of the remuneration. 

Remuneration to Managerial Person, KMP and Senior Management: 

1. Fixed pay: Managerial Person, KMP and Senior Management shall be eligible for a monthly 
remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee in 
accordance with the statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made there under 
for the time being in force. The break-up of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, 
employer’s contribution to P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and 
approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee and approved by the shareholders 
and Central Government, wherever required. 

2. Minimum Remuneration: If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are 
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inadequate, the Company shall pay remuneration to its Managerial Person in accordance with the 
provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and if it is not able to comply with such provisions, 
with the prior approval of the Central Government. 

3. Provisions for excess remuneration: If any Managerial Person draws or receives, directly or indirectly 
by way of remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 
2013 or without the prior sanction of the Central Government, where required, he / she shall refund 
such sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The 
Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the Central 
Government. 

Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent Director: 

1. Remuneration / Commission: The remuneration / commission shall be in accordance with the 
statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made there under for the time being in 
force. 

2. Sitting Fees: The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees 
for attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not 
exceed the maximum amount as provided in the Companies Act, 2013, per meeting of the Board or 
Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government from time to time. 

3. Limit of Remuneration /Commission: Remuneration /Commission may be paid within the monetary 
limit approved by shareholders, subject to the limit not exceeding 1% of the net profits of the Company 
computed as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Minutes of Committee Meeting: 

Proceedings of all meetings must be minuted and signed by the Chairman of the said meeting or the 
Chairman of the next succeeding meeting. Minutes of the Committee meeting will be tabled at the 
subsequent Board and Committee meeting. 

Deviations from this policy 

Deviations on elements of this policy in extraordinary circumstances, when deemed necessary in the 
interests of the Company, will be made if there are specific reasons to do so in an individual case. 
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Annexure – B 

 
FORM NO. AOC -2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s 
length transaction under third proviso thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. 

SL. No. Particulars Details 
a)  Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship N.A. 
b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction N.A. 
c)  Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction N.A. 
d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 

transaction including the value, if any 
N.A. 

e)  Justification for entering into such contracts or 
arrangements or transactions’ 

N.A. 

f)  Date of approval by the Board N.A. 
g)  Amount paid as advances, if any N.A. 
h)  Date on which the special resolution was passed in 

General meeting as required under first proviso to 
section 188 

N.A. 

 
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.  

 
2.1. Piotex Textech Private Limited, Promoter Group Company 

SL. No. Particulars Details 
a)  Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 
Piotex Textech Private Limited, 
Promoter Group Company 

b)  Nature of 
contracts/arrangements/transaction 

1. Sale of Goods
2. Purchase of Goods 
3. Interest Paid 
4. Rent Pais 
5. Loan Repaid 

c)  Duration of the 
contracts/arrangements/transaction 

During F.Y. 2024-25

d)  Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transaction including the 
value, if any 

Value of transaction (in Lakhs) as per 
nature of transaction mentioned in Sr 
no. b above. 
1. Sale of Goods – 203.20 
2. Purchase of Goods – 23.31 
3. Interest Paid – 2.16 
4. Rent Paid – 2.83  
5. Loan Repaid – 194.30  

e)  Date of approval by the Board The requisite approval has been 
obtained as and when required. 

f)  Amount paid as advances, if any Nil
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2.2. Sandeep Vitthalrao Deore, Director of Company 

SL. No. Particulars Details 
g)  Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 
Sandeep Vitthalrao Deore, Director of 
Company 

h)  Nature of 
contracts/arrangements/transaction 

1. Interest Paid
2. Loan Repaid 

i)  Duration of the 
contracts/arrangements/transaction 

During F.Y. 2024-25

j)  Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transaction including the 
value, if any 

Value of transaction (in Lakhs) as per 
nature of transaction mentioned in Sr 
no. b above. 
1. Interest Paid – 2.45 
2. Loan Repaid – 156.00 

k)  Date of approval by the Board The requisite approval has been 
obtained as and when required. 

l)  Amount paid as advances, if any Nil

 

2.3. Abhay Shriram Asalkar, Managing Director of Company 

SL. No. Particulars Details 
m)  Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 
Abhay Shriram Asalkar, Managing 
Director of Company 

n)  Nature of 
contracts/arrangements/transaction 

1. Remuneration
2. Reimbursement of Expenses 

o)  Duration of the 
contracts/arrangements/transaction 

During F.Y. 2024-25

p)  Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transaction including the 
value, if any 

Value of transaction (in Lakhs) as per 
nature of transaction mentioned in Sr 
no. b above. 
1. Remuneration- 11.06 
2. Reimbursement of Expenses- 1.24  

q)  Date of approval by the Board The requisite approval has been 
obtained as and when required. 

r)  Amount paid as advances, if any Nil

 
2.4. Yogesh Omprakash Nimodiya, Executive Director of Company 

SL. No. Particulars Details 
s)  Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 
Yogesh Omprakash Nimodiya, 
Executive Director of Company 

t)  Nature of 
contracts/arrangements/transaction 

1. Remuneration
2. Reimbursement of Expenses 

u)  Duration of the 
contracts/arrangements/transaction 

During F.Y. 2024-25

v)  Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transaction including the 
value, if any 

Value of transaction (in Lakhs) as per 
nature of transaction mentioned in Sr 
no. b above. 
1. Remuneration- 11.06 
2. Reimbursement of Expenses- 3.91 

w)  Date of approval by the Board The requisite approval has been 
obtained as and when required. 

x)  Amount paid as advances, if any Nil
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2.5. Piotex Ventures Private Limited, Promoter Group Company 

SL. No. Particulars Details 
y)  Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 
Piotex Ventures Private Limited, 
Promoter Group Company 

z)  Nature of 
contracts/arrangements/transaction 

1. Loan/Advances given to associate 
body corporate 

2. Loan/Advances received back from 
associate body corporate 

3. Interest Received 
aa)  Duration of the 

contracts/arrangements/transaction 
During F.Y. 2024-25

bb)  Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transaction including the 
value, if any 

Value of transaction (in Lakhs) as per 
nature of transaction mentioned in Sr 
no. b above. 
1. Loan/Advances given to associate 

body corporate- 5.35 
2. Loan/Advances received back from 

associate body corporate- 82.57 
3. Interest Received- 26.72 

cc)  Date of approval by the Board The requisite approval has been 
obtained as and when required. 

dd)  Amount paid as advances, if any Nil

 

2.6. Adler Bizsol LLP, Promoter Group Company 

SL. No. Particulars Details 
ee)  Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 
Adler Bizsol LLP, Promoter Group 
Company 

ff)  Nature of 
contracts/arrangements/transaction 

Loan/Advances given to associate body 
corporate 

gg)  Duration of the 
contracts/arrangements/transaction 

During F.Y. 2024-25

hh)  Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transaction including the 
value, if any 

Value of transaction (in Lakhs) as per 
nature of transaction mentioned in Sr 
no. b above. 
Loan/Advances given to associate body 
corporate- 118.80 

ii)  Date of approval by the Board The requisite approval has been 
obtained as and when required. 

jj)  Amount paid as advances, if any Nil

 

 For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Piotex Industries Limited 

 
 
 

 
Date: 30th June, 2025 
Place: Pune  

Mr. Abhay Shriram Asalkar
Managing Director 

DIN: 06851614 

Mr. Yogesh Omprakash 
Nimodiya 

   Executive Director 
DIN: 06851606 
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Annexure – C 

 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

(Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and rules made there under) 

 

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: 

i.) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:  

The Company has taken measures and applied strict control system to monitor day to day power consumption, to 
endeavor to ensure the optimal use of energy with minimum extent possible wastage as far as possible. The day-
to-day consumption is monitored and various ways and means are adopted to reduce the power consumption in an 
effort to save energy. 

ii.) The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:  

The Company has not taken any step for utilizing alternate sources of energy. 

iii.) The capital investment on energy conservation equipment:  

During the year under review, Company has not incurred any capital investment on energy conservation equipment. 

 

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 

i.) The effort made towards technology absorption:  

The Company has not imported any technology and hence there is nothing to be reported here. 

ii.) The benefit derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution:  

None 

iii.) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the 
financial year) – 

a. The details of technology imported: Nil 

b. The year of import: Not Applicable 

c. Whether the technology has been fully absorbed: Not Applicable 

d. If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof: Not Applicable 

iv.) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development:  

During the year under review, the Company has not incurred any Expenditure on Research and Development 

 

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & EXPENDITURE: 

i.) Details of Foreign Exchange Earnings:       (In Rs.) 

Sr. No. Particulars F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24 

1. FOB Value of Export NIL NIL

 

ii.) Details of Foreign Exchange Expenditure:        (In Rs.) 

Sr. No. Particulars F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24 

1. Foreign Exchange Expenditure NIL NIL

 

 For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Piotex Industries Limited 

 
 
 

 
Date: 30th June, 2025 
Place: Pune  

Mr. Abhay Shriram Asalkar
Managing Director 

DIN: 06851614 

Mr. Yogesh Omprakash Nimodiya
   Executive Director 

DIN: 06851606 
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Annexure – D 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

1. Industry Structure and Developments 
India’s textiles sector is one of the oldest industries in the Indian economy, dating back to several centuries. 
The industry is extremely varied, with hand-spun and hand-woven textiles sectors at one end of the 
spectrum, with the capital-intensive sophisticated mills sector at the other end. The fundamental strength 
of the textile industry in India is its strong production base of a wide range of fibre/yarns from natural 
fibres like cotton, jute, silk, and wool, to synthetic/man-made fibres like polyester, viscose, nylon and 
acrylic. 

The decentralised power looms/ hosiery and knitting sector form the largest component of the textiles 
sector. The close linkage of textiles industry to agriculture (for raw materials such as cotton) and the 
ancient culture and traditions of the country in terms of textiles makes it unique in comparison to other 
industries in the country. India’s textiles industry has a capacity to produce a wide variety of products 
suitable for different market segments, both within India and across the world. 

According to Crisil Ratings, the organised retail apparel sector is projected to achieve revenue growth of 8-
10% in FY25, driven by rising demand from a normal monsoon, easing inflation, and the festive and wedding 
seasons.  

The increasing preference for affordable, trendy fashion clothing that mimics high-fashion designs is 
expected to be the primary revenue driver. In order to attract private equity and employee more people, 
the government introduced various schemes such as the Scheme for Integrated Textile Parks (SITP), 
Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme (TUFS) and Mega Integrated Textile Region and Apparel (MITRA) Park 
scheme. 

Market Size 

The market for Indian textiles and apparel is projected to grow at a 10% CAGR to reach US$ 350 billion by 
2030. Moreover, India is the world's 3rd largest exporter of Textiles and Apparel. India ranks among the top 
five global exporters in several textile categories, with exports expected to reach US$100 billion. 

The textiles and apparel industry contributes 2.3% to the country’s GDP, 13% to industrial production and 
12% to exports. The textile industry in India is predicted to double its contribution to the GDP, rising from 
2.3% to approximately 5% by the end of this decade. 

Textile manufacturing in India has been steadily recovering amid the pandemic. The manufacturing of 
textiles Index for the month of June 2024 is 106. 

Global apparel market is expected to grow at a CAGR of around 8% to reach US$ 2.37 trillion by 2030 and 
the Global Textile & Apparel trade is expected to grow at a CAGR of 4% to reach US$ 1.2 trillion by 2030. 

India’s home textile industry is expected to expand at a CAGR of 8.9% during 2023-32 and reached US$ 23.32 
billion in 2032 from US$ 10.78 billion in 2023. 

The Indian Technical Textile market has a huge potential of a 10% growth rate, increased penetration level 
of 9-10% and is the 5th largest technical textiles market in the world. India’s sportech industry is estimated 
around US$ 1.17 million in 2022-23. 

The Indian Medical Textiles market for drapes and gowns is around US$ 9.71 million in 2022 and is expected 
to grow at 15% to reach US$ 22.45 million by 2027. 

The Indian composites market is expected to reach an estimated value of US$ 1.9 billion by 2026 with a 
CAGR of 16.3% from 2021 to 2026 and the Indian consumption of composite materials will touch 7,68,200 
tonnes in 2027. 

India is the world’s largest producer of cotton. In the first advances, the agriculture ministry projected 
cotton output for 2023-24 at 31.6 million bales. According to the Cotton Association of India (CAI), the total 
availability of cotton in the 2023-24 season has been pegged at 34.6 million bales, against 31.1 million bales 
of domestic demand, including 28 million bales for mills, 1.5 million for small-scale industries, and 1.6 
million bales for non-mills. Cotton production in India is projected to reach 7.2 million tonnes (~43 million 
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bales of 170 kg each) by 2030, driven by increasing demand from consumers. It is expected to surpass US$ 
30 billion by 2027, with an estimated 4.6-4.9% share globally. 

In 2022-23, the production of fibre in India stood at 2.15 million tonnes. While for yarn, the production 
stood at 5,185 million kgs during the same period. Natural fibres are regarded as the backbone of the Indian 
textile industry, which is expected to grow from US$ 138 billion to US$ 195 billion by 2025. 

India's textile industry is on the brink of expansion, with total textile export projected to reach US$ 65 
billion by FY26. 

India saw a 36.4% increase in industrial design applications, particularly in textiles, accessories, tools, 
machines, health, and cosmetics. 

According to ICRA, Indian apparel exporters are projected to achieve revenue growth of 9-11% in FY25, 
driven by the gradual reduction of retail inventory in key end markets and a shift in global sourcing towards 
India. 

During FY24, the total exports of textiles (including handicrafts) stood at US$ 35.9 billion. Exports of textiles 
(RMG of all textiles, cotton yarns/fabs/made-ups/handloom products, man-made yarns/fabs/made-ups, 
handicrafts excl. handmade carpets, carpets and jute mfg. including floor coverings) stood at US$ 35.90 
billion in FY24. In FY24, exports of readymade garments including accessories stood at US$ 14.23 billion. 
India’s textile and apparel exports to the US, its single largest market, stood at 32.7% of the total export 
value in FY24. 

In FY25 (April- June) the total exports of textiles stood at US$ 9.17 billion 

In FY25 (April-June), exports of readymade garments including accessories stood at US$ 2,244 million. 

India’s textiles industry has around 4.5 crore employed workers including 35.22 lakh handloom workers 
across the country. 

 

 

2. Opportunities and Threats 
 
Opportunities 
 Government Incentives: The PLI scheme and other textile promotion policies support capital 

investment and competitiveness. 
 Export Potential: Increasing demand from markets like the USA, EU, and Middle East for synthetic and 

blended textiles. 
 Digital Transformation: Technology adoption in manufacturing and supply chain offers enhanced 

efficiency. 
 Sustainability Trend: Rising demand for eco-friendly and recycled synthetic fibers creates new product 

lines. 
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Threats 

 Raw Material Price Volatility: Prices of petrochemical-based raw materials such as polyester and nylon 
fluctuate with global crude oil prices. 

 Global Trade Disruptions: Ongoing conflicts and trade protectionist policies may affect exports. 
 Labour and Compliance Costs: Increased regulations and cost of compliance may affect profitability. 
 Competition: Rising competition from global players in low-cost economies such as Vietnam and 

Bangladesh. 
 

3. Segment-wise or Product-wise Performance 
The Company is operating only in one segment. The turnover/performance of the Company has been 
disclosed in the Directors report under the Head “Review of Operations, sales and working results.” 

4. Outlook 
Your company remains committed to upholding the highest standards of governance, transparency, and 
ethical practices. With India racing towards growth and becoming a strong economy, we look forward to 
emerge as a strong, reliable, and sustainable company. Together, we shall embrace the future with 
optimism, determination, and the desire to build a brighter tomorrow. 

5. Risks and Concerns 
Key risks faced by the Company include: 

 Commodity Price Risk: Raw materials like polyester chips and filaments are crude-oil derivatives. 
 Currency Risk: Export receivables are subject to forex fluctuations. 
 Credit Risk: Delays in receivables from domestic and overseas clients. 
 Environmental Compliance Risk: Non-compliance with stringent pollution control norms can attract 

penalties. 

The Company has robust risk management and hedging mechanisms in place, including forward contracts, 
inventory management, and diversified client portfolios. 

6. Internal Control Systems and Their Adequacy 
The Company has a sound internal control system commensurate with its size and nature of operations. It 
includes policies and procedures to ensure: 

 Efficient use and protection of resources. 
 Accuracy and completeness of accounting records. 
 Compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

Periodic internal audits are conducted and findings reported to the Audit Committee and Board for 
necessary action. No significant internal control weaknesses were observed during the year. 

7. Financial Performance with Respect to Operational Performance 

PARTICULARS 
Standalone 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024
I. Net Sales/Income from Operations 13435.66 11845.92
II. Other Income 34.41 47.96
III. Total Revenue (I+II) 13470.07 11893.88
IV. Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization 

Expense 
499.29 428.84

V. Finance Cost 47.86 24.65
VI. Depreciation and Amortization Expense 2.08 2.23
VII. Profit Before Tax (IV-V-VI) 449.35 401.96
VIII. Tax Expense:  

Less: Current Tax Expense 115.76 101.29
Less: Deferred Tax  (2.67) (0.12)
         Short Provision for tax - - 
Profit After Tax (VII-VIII) 336.26 300.80
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8. Material Developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations 
The company continues to give utmost importance to Human Resources Development and keeps relations 
normal. As on 31st March, 2025, there are 28 employees.  

Industrial relations continue to be harmonious and normal. 

9. Details of Significant Changes in Key Financial Ratios 

 

10. Cautionary Statement 
Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objectives, projections, 
estimates, expectations, or predictions may be “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of 
applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied due 
to various factors including changes in economic, political, and regulatory environments, natural calamities, 
and market conditions. 

 

 For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Piotex Industries Limited 

 
 
 

 
Date: 30th June, 2025 
Place: Pune  

Mr. Abhay Shriram Asalkar
Managing Director 

DIN: 06851614 

Mr. Yogesh Omprakash 
Nimodiya 

   Executive Director 
DIN: 06851606 
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Annexure – E 

 

Form No. MR- 3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 
 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no. 9 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014] 
 
To, 
The Members 
PIOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
Ahmedabad 

 
I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by PIOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED (hereinafter called “the 
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

 
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications given to me 
and the representations made by the management, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, 
during the audit period ended on March 31, 2025 (“Audit Period”), complied with the statutory provisions 
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in 
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
I have examined the books, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 and made available to me according to the 
provisions of: 

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder; 

ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder; 

iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 

Borrowings; (Not applicable during the period under review) 

v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015; 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; 
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 

2014; (Not applicable during the period under review) 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 

2008; (Not applicable during the period under review) 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with clients;  

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not 
applicable during the period under review) 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not 
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applicable during the period under review)  
(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018. 
(j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. 
 
We have also examined compliance with applicable clauses of the following 

 
1. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
2. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE. 

 
During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with all the material aspects of 
applicable provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 
 
We further report that: 

 
i) The Compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, has 

not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial 
auditor and other designated professionals. 
 

ii) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes if any in the composition of the 
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance 
with the provisions of the Act. 

 

iii) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes 
on agenda were generally sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 

 
iv) Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded 

as part of the minutes. 
 
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the 
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, and 
regulations and guidelines. 

 
For, Nirav Shah & Associates 
(Practicing Company Secretary) 
FRN: S2024GJ962800 
 
 
 
Nirav Arvindkumar Shah 
Mem No. 39412 
COP No. 27102 
PR: 5478/2024 
UDIN: A039412G000664872 
 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 30/06/2025 

 
 
This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure – A and forms  an 
integral part of this report. 
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Annexure A 
 

To, 
The Members 
PIOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
Ahmedabad 

 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 
1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was 
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that 
the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 

3. In respect of laws, rules and regulations other than those specifically mentioned in our report above, 
we have limited our review, analysis and reporting up to process and system adopted by the Company 
for compliance with the same and have not verified detailed compliance, submissions, reporting 
under such laws etc. nor verified correctness and appropriateness thereof including financial records 
and books of accounts of the Company. 
 

4. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books       of Accounts 
of the Company. 
 

5. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of 
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc. 
 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of 
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
For, Nirav Shah & Associates 
(Practicing Company Secretary) 
FRN: S2024GJ962800 
 
 
 
Nirav Arvindkumar Shah 
Mem No. 39412 
COP No. 27102 
PR: 5478/2024 
UDIN: A039412G000664872 
 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 30/06/2025 
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Annexure – F 

 
STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION 

 
[Pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Rule 5(1) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 
1. The Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median Remuneration of the Employees 

of the Company for Financial Year 2024-25. 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director Remuneration Median 
Remuneration 

Ratio

1 Mr. Abhay Shriram Asalkar 11.06 1.55 7.14
2 Mr. Yogesh Omprakash 

Nimodiya 
11.06 1.55 7.14

3 Mr. Sandeep Vitthalrao Deore  - 1.55 - 
4 Mr. Sandeep Narayanrao Deore - 1.55 - 
5 Mrs. Bhavisha Kunal Chauhan  - 1.55 - 

 
2. Percentage of increase in Remuneration of each Director, CFO, CEO, Company Secretary or 

Manager, if any in the financial Year 2024-25. 
 

Sr. No. Name of Director Designation % Increase in 
Remuneration 

1 Mr. Abhay Shriram Asalkar Managing Director Nil 
2 Mr. Yogesh Omprakash Nimodiya Executive Director Nil 

3 Mr. Sandeep Vitthalrao Deore  Non-Executive Director Nil 

4 Mr. Sandeep Narayanrao Deore Independent Director Nil 

5 Mrs. Bhavisha Kunal Chauhan Independent Director Nil 

3 Mr. Mahendra Singh Rajpoot Company Secretary Nil 
 
3. The Median remuneration of employees of the company during the Financial Year 2024-25 was Rs. 

1.55 Lakhs. 
 
4. There was decrease in the median remuneration of the employees in the financial year 2024-25 

around 19.69%. 
 
5. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company is 28. 
 
6. The average increase of the remuneration of employees is in line with the current year’s 

performance, market dynamics and as a measure to motivate the employees for better future 
performance to achieve the organization’s growth expectations. 

 
7.  The Company affirms remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company. 
 
 
 For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Piotex Industries Limited 
 
 
 

 
Date: 30th June, 2025 
Place: Pune  

Mr. Abhay Shriram Asalkar
Managing Director 

DIN: 06851614 

Mr. Yogesh Omprakash 
Nimodiya 

   Executive Director 
DIN: 06851606 
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DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION OF TOP TEN EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY IN TERMS OF SALARY DRAWN 
AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 134(3) (Q) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF 
COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014. 
 

 
 For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Piotex Industries Limited 
 
 
 

 
Date: 30th June, 2025 
Place: Pune  

Mr. Abhay Shriram Asalkar
Managing Director 

DIN: 06851614 

Mr. Yogesh Omprakash 
Nimodiya 

   Executive Director 
DIN: 06851606

Name Designa
tion 

Remuner
ation 
(Per 

Annum) 

Nature of 
Employm

ent 

Qualificat
ion 

No 
of 

Sha
res 
Hel
d

Expe
rienc

e 
(Yea

r) 

Date of 
Commence

ment of 
employme

nt 

Age 
(Ye
ars
) 

Relativ
e of 
any 

Direct
or 

Sunil 
Motwani 

 

 
Account 

Head 
13,90,749 

Non- 
Contractu

al 

Chartered 
Accounta
nt

- 1 01-06-2024 49 NA 

Salim 
Makandar 

Dy. 
Manager 
Account

s 
4,80,905 

Non-
Contractu

al M.com - 2 28-03-2022 34 NA 

Dibyaranj
an 

Pradeep 
Pradhan 

 

Electric
al 

Enginee
r 

4,48,860 

Non-
Contractu

al Matriculat
ion 

- 2 25-07-2023 31 NA 

Rupali 
Hattikatti 

 

Executiv
e   2,95,390 

Non-
Contractu

al
MBA - 4 27-12-2021 31 NA 

Ankush 
Tapkir 

 

Executiv
e 

2,82,158 
Non-

Contractu
al

M.Com - 1 05-02-2024 34 NA 

Ravi 
Sardar 

 

Manager 
- 

Garmen
t 

2,60,190 

Non-
Contractu

al MBA - - 05-11-2024 36 NA 

Dipak 
Kawade 

Executiv
e - 

Account
s 

2,44,039 

Non-
Contractu

al B.com - 2 03-11-2023 33 NA 

Sachin 
Malgonde 

 

Supervis
or  2,23,853 

Non-
Contractu

al
B.A. - 4 07-10-2021 44 NA 

Mahendra 
Singh 

Rajpoot 
 

Compan
y 

Secretar
y 

2,09,622 

Non-
Contractu

al 
Company 
Secretary - 2 20-09-2023 36 NA 

Arunkuma
r Tiwari 

Forema
n – Ring 
Frame 

1,85,579 

Non-
Contractu

al 
Matriculat

ion 
- - 29-07-2024 31 NA 
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 

                                                       
MANAGING DIRECTOR /CEO AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATION 

Regulation 17(8) and 33(2)(a) of SEBI(LODR)2015 
 

A. We have reviewed audited Financial Statements and cash flow statement for the year 2024-25 and that 
to the best of our knowledge and belief: 
 

(1) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading; 

 
(2) These statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 
 
B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed entity 
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violates listed entity’s code of conduct. 
 
C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and 
that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the listed entity pertaining to 
financial reporting and have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design 
or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose 
to take to rectify these deficiencies.  
 
D. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee. 
 

(1) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 
 

(2) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in 
the notes to the financial statements; and 

 
(3) Instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if 

any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the listed entity’s internal 
control system over financial reporting. 

 

 For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Piotex Industries Limited 

 
 
 

 
Date: 30th June, 2025 
Place: Pune  

Mr. Abhay Shriram Asalkar
Managing Director 

DIN: 06851614 

Mr. Yogesh Omprakash 
Nimodiya 

   Executive Director 
DIN: 06851606 
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DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
Pursuant to Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 
 
To,  
The Members,  
PIOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED  
Ahmedabad 
 
I, Mr. Abhay Shriram Asalkar, Managing Director of Piotex Industries Limited hereby declare that all the 
board members and senior executives one level below the executive directors including all functional heads 
have affirmed for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, compliance with the code of conduct of the 
Company laid down for them. 
 
 For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Piotex Industries Limited 
 
 

 
Date: 30th June, 2025 
Place: Pune  

Mr. Abhay Shriram Asalkar
Managing Director 

DIN: 06851614
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(I) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

To, 

The Members of 

PIOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 
Directors of PIOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED, having CIN U17299PN2019PLC187464 and having registered office 
at F/II Block, Plot No. 16/2, M.I.D.C, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra, 411018 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the 
Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance 
with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(I) of the Securities Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015. 
 

Sr. No Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in 
Company* 

1 Mr. Abhay Shriram Asalkar 06851614 24/10/2019 
2 Mr. Yogesh Omprakash Nimodiya 06851606 24/10/2019 
3 Mr. Sandeep Vitthalrao Deore 05138825 30/11/2021 
4 Mr. Sandeep Narayanrao Deore 00870467 15/09/2023 
5 Mrs. Bhavisha Kunal Chauhan 10092854 15/09/2023 

     * the date of appointment is as per the MCA Portal. 
 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 
furnished to us by the Company & its officers, We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of 
the Company as stated above for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2025 have been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 
 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based 
on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of 
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
For, Nirav Shah & Associates 
(Practicing Company Secretary) 
FRN: S2024GJ962800 
 
 
 
Nirav Arvindkumar Shah 
Mem No. 39412 
COP No. 27102 
PR: 5478/2024 
UDIN: A039412G000664949 
 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 30/06/2025 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

 

To,  
The Members 
PIOTEX INDUTRIES LIMITED 
Maharashtra 
 
 
Report on the audit of the financial statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/S. PIOTEX INDUTRIES 
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025 and the 
Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025 and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31, 2025 its profit and its cash flows  for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the code of ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion 
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Key audit matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in 
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that 
there are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures 
to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not include the financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

When we read the above-mentioned reports, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take 
appropriate actions as per the applicable laws and regulations. 

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of 
the financial position, financial performance of the Company in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified under section 
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
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The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 
 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls 

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report.  

 
 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged 
with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about 
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we 
give in the Annexure “A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 
Order, to the extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 
 
(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 
 
(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss A/c and the Cash Flow Statement dealt 
with by this report are in agreement with the books of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financials controls over financial reporting of the 
company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 
Annexure B. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financials controls over financial reporting. 
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(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the 
provisions of section 197 of the Act.  

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us; 

 The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 
position; 
 

 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and 
 

 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

 

  A] The Management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and 
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
company to or in any other person(s) or entities, including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 
B] the management has represented, that, to the best of their knowledge and 
belief, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or 
entity (ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

 
C] Based on such audit procedures, nothing has come to our notice that has 
caused them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (A) and (B) 
contain any material mis-statement.  
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   The Company has not declared or paid dividend during the year. 
 
For S V J K and Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN-135182W 
 
 
 
Ankit Singhal   
Partner                                                          
Membership No. 151324 
UDIN: 25151324BMOBZY1614 
 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 30th May, 2025 
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Annexure – A 
 

To The Independent Auditor's Report 
 

Report on the Companies (Auditor’ Report) Order, 2020, issued in terms of section 
143 (11) of the Companies Act, 2013(‘the Act’) of M/S. PIOTEX INDUTRIES 
LIMITED, (‘the Company’) 
 
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under “Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section 
of our report of even date) 
 
To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company 
and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that 
 

(i) 
 
 
 
 

(a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, 
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, 
Capital work in progress and relevant details of right of use Assets. 

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of 
Intangible Assets, wherever applicable. 
 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a programme 
of verification to cover all the items of fixed assets in a phased manner of three 
years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, portion of the 
fixed assets were physically verified by the Management during the year. No 
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 
 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not hold any 
immovable property (other than properties where the company is the lessee and 
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) during the year. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.   
 

 (d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment 
(including Right of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year. 
 

 (e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been 
initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at 31st March, 
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2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 
 

(ii) (a) The Management has conducted Physical Verification of Inventory at reasonable   
intervals during the year, in our opinion procedures and coverage of such 
procedures is appropriate. As informed to us, any discrepancies of 10% or more 
in the aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed on such verification. 

 (b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the 
Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores 
hence this clause is not applicable. 
 

(iii) a) According to information and explanation given to us, the company has made 
investment and granted loan and advances in the nature of loan, provided 
guarantees to the persons other than associates, subsidiaries and joint ventures as 
follows:  

 
 
Particulars 

Amount in 
Lacs 
(Loans & 
Advances, 
including 
Business 
Advances) 

Amount 
in Lacs 
(Guarant
ee) 

Amount in Lacs 
(Investment) 

Aggregate amount of loan 
granted/ Guarantee 
provided/Investments 
made/ Business advances 
during the year  

                        

118.80  

 

 
0.00 

 
0.00 

Balance outstanding as at 
balance sheet date in respect 
of above case  

 
315.51 

 
0.00 

 
0.00 

 
b) According to information and explanation given to us and based on the audit 

procedures conducted by us, We are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of 
which loans have been granted by the company during the year are not prejudicial 
to the company’s interest. 

 
c) According to information and explanation given to us and based on the audit 

procedures conducted by us, in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, 
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has not been stipulated. 
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d) The amount is not overdue, on the above loan and advances; hence this clause is 
not applicable; 

 
e) The amount is not overdue, on the above loan and advances; hence this clause is 

not applicable; 
 
f) The Company has granted Loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable 

on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment, to the following 
related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 as 
per details mentioned below. 

 
Sr. No. Particulars Amount of Loan 

granted during 
the year 

O/s Bal. as on 31st 
March, 2025 

1) Advances granted to promoters NIL NIL 
2) Business Advances Granted to 

related parties other than 
promoters 

118.80 315.51 

3) % of overall Business Advances 
granted of same nature 

100.00% 100.00% 

 

  
(iv) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 in respect of the loans and investments made, and guarantees and security 
provided by it, as applicable. 

(v) The Company has not accepted deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits 
from the public during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at March 
31, 2025. Therefore, the reporting requirement under clause 3(v) of the Order is not 
applicable. 
 

(vi) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under 
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the products manufactured by it (and/or 
services provided by it). Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable. 
 
 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on records 
of the Company examined by us, the Company has generally been regular in 
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State 
Insurance, Income Tax, Customs Duty, income tax deducted at source, Goods 
and Service Tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable. 
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 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, there are no dues of income tax, 
sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods 
and services tax or any other statutory dues which have not been deposited on 
account of any dispute. 
 
 

(viii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, there were no transactions relating to previously 
unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 during the year. 
 

(ix) (a) In our opinion, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other 
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year. 

 (b) The Company has  not  been declared wilful defaulter by any bank  or  financial  
institution  or government or any government authority. 

 (c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by 
the Company were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for 
which the loans were obtained. 

 (d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds 
raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for 
long-term purposes by the Company. 

 (e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of 
or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures; hence 
this clause is not applicable; 

 (f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities 
held in its subsidiary. 
 

(x) (a) The Company had raised fund vide issuing 15,39,600 equity shares having face 
value of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs.84/- equity shares aggregating to Rs. 
1447.22 lakhs. The said funds were applied for the purposes for which those are 
raised. The details of utilisation of the IPO Proceeds refer Note: 28(J) of The 
Financial Statements of Company. 
 

 (b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
during the year and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.  
 

(xi) (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, 
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, 
and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither 
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come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, 
noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case 
by the Management. 
 

 (b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, 
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, 
and according to the information and explanations given to us, a report under 
Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the 
Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company. 
 

 (c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company 
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, 
and according to the information and explanations given to us, and as 
represented to us by the management, no whistle-blower complaints have been 
received during the year by the Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 
3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

(xiii) The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the 
provisions of Section 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have 
been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Accounting Standard 18 
“Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act.  
 

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, 
in our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with 
the size and nature of its business 

 (b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for 
the period under audit. 
 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any 
non-cash transactions with Directors or persons connected to directors and hence 
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(xvi) 
 
 
 

(a)          
 
 
 

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of 
the Order is not applicable. 
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(b) 
 
 
 
(c) 
 
 
 
 
(d) 

The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance 
activities without a Valid Certificate of Registration (COR) from the Reserve 
bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act,1934. 
 
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the 
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of 
the Order is not applicable. 
 
According In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) and it does 
not have any other companies in the Group. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi) (d) 
of the Order is not applicable 

   
(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our 

audit and the immediately preceding financial year. 
 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, 
clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, (Asset Liability Maturity (ALM) pattern) other 
information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes me to 
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating 
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date. I, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of 
the audit report and We neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities 
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged 
by the Company as and when they fall due. 
 
 
 
 

(xx) 
 
 
 
 

There are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified 
in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special account in compliance with the 
provision of sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under 
paragraph 3 Clause (xx) of the order does not arise. 
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(xxi) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of 
Standalone Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said 
clause has been included in this report. 
 
 
 
For S V J K and Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN-135182W 
 
 
 
Ankit Singhal   
Partner                                                          
Membership No. 151324 
UDIN: 25151324BMOBZY1614 
 
Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : 30th May, 2025 
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report 
 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  
 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/S. PIOTEX 
INDUTRIES LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of 
the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.  
 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  
 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.   
 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility  
 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and 
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 
 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  
 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  
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Opinion  
 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements and such internal controls were operating effectively as at 
31 March 2025, based on the internal financial control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.   
 
 
For S V J K and Associates. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN-135182W 
 
 
 
Ankit Singhal   
Partner                                                          
Membership No. 151324 
UDIN: 25151324BMOBZY1614 
 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 30th May, 2025 
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(₹ in Lakhs)

Particulars Note
 As at

31/03/2025 
 As at

31/03/2024 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ Funds
    Share Capital 2 510.36                    356.40                            
    Reserves and Surplus 3 2,040.76                 582.47                            

2,551.12                 938.87                             
Non-Current Liabilities
    Long-Term Borrowings 4 -                         345.94                            
    Other Non-Current Liabilities -                         -                                 
    Deferred Tax Liability 5 -                         0.06                               
    Long-Term Provisions 6 9.85                       -                                 

9.85                        346.01                             
Current Liabilities
    Short-Term Borrowings 7 219.61                    100.00                            
    Trade Payables 8

i) Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 18.79                      1,623.55                         
i) Due to Others 304.02                    349.35                            

    Other Current Liabilities 9 86.56                      242.90                            
    Short-Term Provisions 10 18.35                      9.91                               

647.34                    2,325.71                         

3,208.31                 3,610.59                         

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
    Property Plant & Equipments and Intangible Assets
        (i) Property Plant & Equipments 11 9.78                       10.08                             
        (ii) Intangible Assets -                         -                                 
        (iii) Capital work-in-progress -                         -                                 
   Non-current Investments -                         -                                 
   Deferred Tax Assets 12 2.61                       -                                 
   Long-Term Loans and Advances -                         -                                 
   Other Non Current Assets 13 316.25                    89.15                             

328.63                    99.23                               
Current assets
   Inventories 14 66.92                      19.88                             
   Trade Receivables 15 1,858.44                 3,207.75                         
   Cash and Cash Equivalents 16 19.39                      6.14                               
   Short-Term Loans and Advances 17 327.48                    269.50                            
   Other Current Assets 18 607.44                    8.09                               

2,879.67                 3,511.36                         

3,208.31                 3,610.59                         

Summary of significant accounting policies 1

As per our report of even date attached

For S V J K and Associates. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants PIOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Firm's Registration No: 135182W

Ankit Singhal Abhay Asalkar Yogesh Nimodiya
Partner Managing Director Director / CFO
M No.151324 (DIN : 06851614) (DIN : 06851606)
UDIN: 25151324BMOBZY1614

Mahendra Singh Rajpoot
Company Secretory

Place: Ahmedabad Place: Pune
Date: 30th May, 2025 Date: 30th May, 2025

PIOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(CIN:U17299PN2019PLC187464)

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025
F/II BLOCK, PLOT NO. 16/2, M.I.D.C., PIMPRI, NA PUNE Pune Maharashtra 411018
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(₹ in Lakhs)

Particulars Note
 For the year ended

 31/03/2025 
 For the year ended

 31/03/2024 

Income
Revenue from operations 19 13,435.66                      11,845.92                            
Other Income 20 34.41                            47.96                                  

Total Income 13,470.07                    11,893.88                           

Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 21 132.05                          376.49                                
Purchases of stock-in-trade 22 12,720.28                      11,004.39                            
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in- progress 23 (66.92)                          8.02                                   
Employee benefits expense 24 93.80                            42.28                                  
Finance costs 25 47.86                            24.65                                  
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2.08                             2.23                                   
Other expenses 26 91.56                            33.86                                  

Total expenses 13,020.71                    11,491.92                           

Profit before tax 449.36                          401.96                                 

Tax expense:
 -Current tax Expense 115.76                          101.29                                
 -Short/(Excess) provision of tax for earlier years -                               -                                     
 -Deferred tax charge/(credit) (2.67)                            (0.12)                                  

113.09                          101.17                                

Profit after tax for the year 336.26                          300.80                                 

Earnings per share (face value of ₹ 10/- each): 27
(a) Basic (in ₹) 6.85                             8.48                                   
(b) Diluted (in ₹`) 6.85                             8.48                                   

Summary of Significant accounting  policies 1

For S V J K and Associates. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants PIOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Firm's Registration No: 135182W

Ankit Singhal Abhay Asalkar Yogesh Nimodiya
Partner Managing Director Director / CFO
M No.151324 (DIN : 06851614) (DIN : 06851606)
UDIN: 25151324BMOBZY1614

Mahendra Singh Rajpoot
Company Secretory

Place: Ahmedabad Place: Pune
Date: 30th May, 2025 Date: 30th May, 2025

PIOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(CIN:U17299PN2019PLC187464)

F/II BLOCK, PLOT NO. 16/2, M.I.D.C., PIMPRI, NA PUNE Pune Maharashtra 411018
Profit and loss for the year ended 31st March, 2025
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(₹ in Lakhs)
 For the year ended

 31/03/2025 
 For the year ended

 31/03/2024 

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before Extraordinary items                               449.36                                 401.96 
(i) Adjustment For:
a) Depreciation and Amortization                                  2.08                                    2.23 
b) Interest Charges                                 47.86                                  24.65 
c) Interest Income                               (29.68)                                 (42.00)

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes                                469.62                                  386.84 

(ii) Adjustment For :
a)    (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories                               (47.04)                                 (11.86)
b)    (Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables                            1,349.31                             (2,293.32)
c)    (Increase)/Decrease in Loans & Advances & Other Current Assets                             (657.33)                                 500.17 
d)    Increase /(Decrease) in Trade Payables & Other Liabilities & Short                            (1,801.05)                              1,274.55 

  Term Provision & Long Term Provision

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS                             (686.50)                               (143.62)
Less : Direct Taxes paid                             (102.85)                                 (95.24)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) (789.35)                             (238.86)                               

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

a)    Sales/(Addition )in Fixed Assets & WIP (1.78)                                -                                       
b) (Increase ) / Decrease in Non Current Assets                             (227.10)                                 (89.15)
c) Interest Income                                 29.68                                  42.00 

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) (199.20)                             (47.15)                                 

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

a)    Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Borrowings                             (345.94)                                 (26.36)
b)    Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings                               119.61                                 100.00 
c) Issue of Share Capital                               153.96                                    6.60 
d) Proceeds from Security Premium                            1,293.26                                 191.40 
e) Proceeds from Share Premium utilised for Pre IPO Expense                             (171.24)                                       -   
f)    Interest Paid                               (47.86)                                 (24.65)

NET CASH FLOW IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) 1,001.80                           246.99                                

NET INCREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (A)+(B)+(C ) 13.25                               (39.02)                                
OPENING BALANCE – CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT 6.14                                 45.16                                 
CLOSING BALANCE - CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT 19.39                                6.14                                     

As per our Report of even date

For S V J K and Associates.
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm's Registration No: 135182W PIOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Ankit Singhal Abhay Asalkar Yogesh Nimodiya
Partner Managing Director Director / CFO
M No.151324 (DIN : 06851614) (DIN : 06851606)
UDIN: 25151324BMOBZY1614

Mahendra Singh Rajpoot
Company Secretory

Place: Ahmedabad Place: Pune
Date: 30th May, 2025 Date: 30th May, 2025

PIOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(CIN:U17299PN2019PLC187464)

F/II BLOCK, PLOT NO. 16/2, M.I.D.C., PIMPRI, NA PUNE Pune Maharashtra 411018
Cash Flow statement for the period ended 31st March, 2025

Particulars
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PIOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

(₹ in Lakhs)

 As at
31/03/2025 

 As at
31/03/2024 

2) Share Capital

85,00,000            85,00,000          
850.00                 850.00              

51,03,600            35,64,000          
510.36                 356.40              

510.36                356.40             

a)

No of Shares Rupee in Lacs No of Shares Rupee in Lacs
             35,64,000                  356.40 1,50,000              15.00                
             15,39,600                  153.96 66,000                 6.60                 

Add:- Bonus Share Issued                        -                          -   33,48,000             334.80              
51,03,600            510.36                35,64,000            356.40             

b)Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to share

c) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5 % shares:-

No. of Shares 
held

% of Holding
No. of Shares 

held
% of Holding

Equity Share of Rs. 10 each are held by :
Abhay Shriram Asalkar 16,82,670            32.97% 16,82,670            47.21%
Yogesh Omprakash Nimodiya 16,82,670            32.97% 16,82,670            47.21%
Hitesh Surendra Loonia - - 1,98,000              5.56%

33,65,340          65.94% 35,63,340          100%

d)Details of promoters holding shares:-

No. of Shares 
held

% of Holding
No. of Shares 

held
% of Holding

Equity Share of Rs. 10 each are held by :
Abhay Shriram Asalkar (P) 16,82,670            32.97% 16,82,670            47.21%
Yogesh Omprakash Nimodiya (P) 16,82,670            32.97% 16,82,670            47.21%
Chaitali Abhay Asalkar (PG) 165 0.003% - -
Sandhya Yogesh Nimodiya (PG) 165 0.003% - -

33,65,670          65.95% 33,65,340          94.43%

% Change during the period:  During the year Promoter's share holding is reduced by 28.48%.

P = Promoter
PG = Promoter Group

Authorised
No. of Equity Shares of ₹ 10/- each

Issued Subscribed & Paid up
No. of Equity Shares of ₹ 10/- each
Issued, Subscribed &  Fully Paid up Share Capital In Rs.

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below:-

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 
Add:-Shares Issued during the year*

 As at 31/03/2024

Authorised Equity Share Capital In Rs.

 As at 31/03/2025

 As at 31/03/2024

Shares outstanding at the end of the year

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The
company has not proposed any dividend during preceding financial year. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive
the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amount, in proportion to their shareholding.

 As at 31/03/2025

*The Company has made an Initial Public Offering of 15,39,600 equity shares for cash at a price of Rs. 94 (including a Premium of 84/- per equity

shares), aggregating to Rs. 14.47 Crore.
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PIOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

(₹ in Lakhs)
 As at

31/03/2025 
 As at

31/03/2024 

3 Reserves And Surplus
a) -                 -                   

-                 -                   

b) Security Premium
(+) Increase during the year           1,293.26 191.40              
: Less Bonus Shares Issued                     -   (191.40)             
: Less Pre IPO Expenditure (Including Issue related Expenses)*            (171.24) -                   

1,122.03        -                   

c)
             582.47 425.07              
             336.26 300.80              

: Less Bonus Shares Issued                     -   (143.40)             
Balance at end of the year 918.74            582.47              

2,040.76        582.47             

4 Long Term Borrowings

a)
-                 -                   
-                 -                   
-                 -                   

-                 -                   

b)
From Bank (Note 4.1) 79.45              -                   
From NBFC -                 -                   

-                 153.80              
79.45             153.80             

c) -                 192.14              

d) Less: Current Maturities of Long term borrowings 79.45              -                   

-                 345.94             

Note 4.1:
Sr 
No 

Particulars Interest Rate No of EMI Security Type
Sanctioned 

Amount
Installment 
Amount

1 Deutsche  Bank 14.00% 12.00           Unsecured 50.00           4.49                  
2 KOTAK BANK 15.23% 13.00           Unsecured 100.00         8.97                  
3 HDFC BANK 13.73% 12.00           Unsecured 75.00           6.71                  

5 Deferred Tax Liability
Opening balance of Deferred Tax Liability / (Deferred Tax Assets) -                 0.19                  
due to Timing difference  -                 (0.12)                
Deferred Tax Liability / (Deferred Tax Asset) -                 0.06                 

6 Long-term provisions

Provision for Gratuity 9.85                -                   
9.85                -                   

7 Short Tem Borrowings

a) Secured 
Loan Repayable on demand -                 -                   

-                 -                   
-                 -                   

-                 -                   

b) Unsecured
Loan Repayable on demand (Note 7.1) 139.91            -                   

-                 100.00              
-                 -                   

From Share holder & Directors 0.25                -                   
140.16           100.00             

c) 79.45              -                   

219.61           100.00             

Note 7.1:
Sr 
No 

Particulars Type of Loan Interest Rate
Period of 

Repayment
1 Aditya Birla Finance Dropline Flexi OD 15.50% 24
2 Bajaj Finance Limited Flexi Term Loan 16.00% 12
3 IDFC First Bank Dropline Flexi OD 15.20% 18
4 L & T Finance Dropline OD 14.00% 24
5 Tata Capital Limited Dropline OD 14.75% 24

From Bank
From NBFC

Inter Corporate loan

From Bank
From NBFC

Current Maturities of Long term 

From bank
From NBFC

Unsecured 

From Directors & Share Holders

Opening balance
Net Profit For the current year

Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss A/c

General Reserve Account

Secured 

From Directors & Share Holders

* Pre-IPO expenditure related to the issue, being in the nature of issue-related expenses, has been adjusted against the Securities 
Premium Account in accordance with the provisions of Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Sanctioned 
Amount

Outstanding Amount

Outstanding Amount

4.40                        
0.05                        

75.00                       

50.00             
50.70             
76.50             
75.00             
75.00             

42.38                       
8.67                        
-                          

45.77                       
43.09                       
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PIOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

(₹ in Lakhs)
As at

31/03/2025
As at

31/03/2024

8 Trade Payable 
18.79             1,623.55       

304.02           349.35          
322.81          1,972.91     

a) Ageing of Trade 
Payable

Not Due 0-1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years
More then 3 

years
 Total 

-                   18.79               -                -                -                18.79            
-                   304.02              -                -                304.02          
-                   -                   -                -                -                -               
-                   -                   -                -                -                -               

-                  322.81            -                -                -                322.81         

Not Due 0-1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years
More then 3 

years
 Total 

-                   1,623.55           -                -                -                1,623.55       
-                   315.49              33.86             -                349.35          
-                   -                   -                -                -                -               
-                   -                   -                -                -                -               

-                  1,939.05         -                33.86            -                1,972.91     

b) Dues payable to Micro and Small Enterprises:

 As at
31/03/2025 

 As at
31/03/2024 

18.79             1,623.55       
-                -               
-                -               
-                

-               

-                -               

9 Other Current Liabilities
52.46             214.03          
27.24             24.35            
6.86               4.52              

86.56            242.90         

10 Short Term Provisions

Provision for Expenses 3.58               2.13              
14.37             7.78              

Provision for Gratuity 0.39               -               
18.35            9.91             

Total Outstanding  dues of micro and small enterprises

Particulars

Total Outstanding  dues of Creditor other than micro and small 
enterprises

Outstanding as on 31st March 2025 following periods of due date of payment

(i) MSE

Amount of the interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment but without adding the interest specified under the 
MSMED Act
Amount of interest accrued and remaing unpaid at the end of the accounting year

Total

(ii) Others
(iii) Disputed dues - MSE
(iv) Disputed dues - Others
Total

(iv) Disputed dues - Others

(i) MSE
(ii) Others
(iii) Disputed dues - MSE

Particulars

Advances  from Customers 

Employee Benefit Payable
Statutory Dues & Other Current Liabilities

Amount of the interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16

Outstanding as on 31st March 2024 following periods of due date of payment

Particulars

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the year end
Interest due on the above mention principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the year end

Provision for tax  (Net of Advance Tax)
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(₹ in Lakhs)

Balance as 
at 1 April 

2024
Additions Disposals 

Balance as at 
31st March, 

2025

Balance as at 
1 April 2024

Depreciation 
charge for the 

year 

On 
disposals 

Balance as at 
31st March, 

2025

Balance as at 
31st March, 

2025

Balance as at 
31 March 2024

I. Property Plant & Equipment

Plant and Equipment 12.50           1.66                   -             14.16              2.42                2.08                  -             4.50                9.67                 10.08                
Furniture and Fixtures -              0.12                   -             0.12                -                 0.00                  -             0.00                0.11                 -                   

Total Tangible Assets 12.50         1.78                   -             14.28             2.42               2.08                 -            4.50                9.78                 10.08               
   

II. Intangible Assets -              -                     -             -                  -                 -                   -             -                  -                   -                   

Total Intangible Assets -             -                    -             -                 -                 -                  -            -                 -                   -                   

Total Assets 12.50         1.78                   -             14.28             2.42               2.08                 -            4.50                9.78                 10.08               
Previous Year Figures 12.50         -                    -             12.50             0.19               2.23                 -            2.42                10.08               12.31               

Note : 11

Fixed Assets

Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation Net Block
Property Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets
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(₹ in Lakhs)
 As at

31/03/2025 
 As at

31/03/2024 

12 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Opening balance of Deferred Tax Assets / (Deferred Tax Liability)                   (0.06)                        -   

due to Timing difference                     2.67                        -   

Deferred Tax Assets / (Deferred Tax Liability)                    2.61                        -   

13 Other Non-Current Assets
Security Deposits                    4.86                    0.36 
Miscelleneous Expense Not Written Off                  30.65                  41.69 
Advances for capital goods                280.74                  47.10 

               316.25                  89.15 

14 Inventories

Raw Materials and components                        -                    19.88 
Finished goods                  66.92                        -   
Stock-in-Trade                        -                          -   
Waste                        -                          -   

                 66.92                  19.88 

15 Trade receivables 
Trade receivables - Considered good             1,858.44             3,207.75 
Trade receivables - doubtful debt                        -                          -   

1,858.44           3,207.75           

Age of receivables

 Less than
6 months 

 6 Months
- 1 year 

 1-2 years  2-3 years 
 More than

3 years 
 Total 

Undisputed 

    Trade receivables - Considered good             954.64             730.01             173.78 -                 -                     1,858.44           

     Trade receivables - doubt full debt -                 -                 -                 -                 -                     -                     

Disputed 

     Trade receivables - Considered good -                 -                 -                 -                 -                     -                     

     Trade receivables - doubt full debt -                 -                 -                 -                 -                     -                     

Total 954.64           730.01           173.78           -                 -                     1,858.44           

 Less than
6 months 

 6 Months
- 1 year 

 1-2 years  2-3 years 
 More than

3 years 
 Total 

Undisputed 

    Trade receivables - Considered good 2,050.37        1,157.38        -                 -                 -                     3,207.75           

     Trade receivables - doubt full debt -                 -                 -                 -                 -                     -                     

Disputed 

     Trade receivables - Considered good -                 -                 -                 -                 -                     -                     

     Trade receivables - doubt full debt -                 -                 -                 -                 -                     -                     

Total 2,050.37        1,157.38        -                 -                 -                     3,207.75           

16 Cash and Bank Balance

a) Bank Balance
(i) In current accounts 18.19                                    4.81 
(ii) In fixed deposit -                                            -   
(iii) In foreign currency account -                                            -   

                 18.19                    4.81 

b) Cash on Hand 1.20                                      1.33 
                   1.20                    1.33 

                 19.39                    6.14 

17 Short Term Loans And Advances

a) Loans and Advances to Related Party
Inter-corporate Loans 315.51                              247.22 

b) Loans and Advances to Others
Balance With Govt Authority                  11.67                  11.48 
Inter-corporate Loans                        -   10.80                 
Other Loan and Advances                    0.30                        -   

327.48               269.50               

18 Other current assets

Prepaid Expenses       1.28 2.95                     
Deposits with NSE                  14.47 -                       
Advance to Suppliers* 591.69                                  5.14 

607.44               8.09                   

* Advance to Suppliers include advance given to Related party of Company of Rs. 118.80 Lakhs.

Outstanding as on 31st March 2024 following periods of due date of payment

Outstanding as on 31st March 2025 following periods of due date of payment

Particulars

Particulars
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PIOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

(₹ in Lakhs)
 For the year 

ended
 31/03/2025 

 For the year 
ended

 31/03/2024 
19 Revenue from operations

Sale of Products 13,282.33               11,845.92                   
Sales of Services 153.33                    -                          

13,435.66               11,845.92               

20 Other income

Discount 1.63                        0.50                            

Interest Income 29.68                      42.00                          

Other Misc Income 3.10                        5.47                            

34.41                      47.96                      

21 Cost of materials consumed 

Inventories at the beginning of the year 19.88                      -                          
Add: Purchases during the year 112.17                    396.38                    

132.05                    396.38                    
Less: Closing stock at the end of the year -                          19.88                      

Cost of materials consumed 132.05                    376.49                    

22 Purchase of stock-in-trade
Purchase of stock-in-trade 12,720.28               11,004.39               

12,720.28               11,004.39               

23 

Inventories at the end of the year:
Finished goods                        66.92                             -   
Work-in-progress                             -                               -   
Waste                             -                               -   
Stock-in-trade                             -                               -   

                       66.92                             -   
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished goods                             -                               -   
Work-in-progress                             -                               -   
Waste                             -                               -   
Stock-in-trade                             -                            8.02 

                            -                            8.02 

Net (increase) / decrease                      (66.92)                          8.02 

24 Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages 57.83                      41.03                      
Director remuneration 22.12                      -                          
Staff welfare expenses 2.17                        0.26                        
Gratuity Expenses 10.84                      -                          
Contributions to Provident and other funds 0.84                        0.98                        

93.80                      42.28                      

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements

25 Finance costs

Interest Expenses 36.96                      24.19                      
Other borrowing costs; Bank Charges 10.90                      0.46                        

47.86                      24.65                      

26 Other expenses

Audit Fees                          1.25 1.25                        
Business Development Expenese                          0.77 -                          
Commission 2.94                        0.47                        
Courier & Postage charges 0.02                        0.07                        
Consumption of packing material 4.42                        -                          
Freight 39.64                      9.35                        
GST Paid 0.12                        -                          
Insurance Expense 1.42                        0.36                        
Other Expense 3.43                        0.00                        
Labour Charges 7.02                        16.27                      
Office Expenses 1.55                        0.08                        

Professional & Legal Fees 11.65                      3.13                        
Professional Tax 0.03                        0.03                        
Rent 3.05                        2.80                        
Repairs & Maintenance 0.32                        0.01                        
Sales Promotion Expenses 5.09                        0.05                        
Traveling Expenses 8.82                        -                          

91.56                      33.86                      
(i) Payments to the auditors comprises 

 - Statutory Audit 1.25                        1.25                        
 - Other Services -                          -                          

(ii) Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility
Gross Amt. required to be spent by the Company during the period NA NA
Amount spent in cash during the year NA NA

27 Earning Per Equity Share 

Before Exceptional Itmes

i)
Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equity 
Shareholders  (` in Lakhs)

336.26                    300.79                    

ii)
Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for 
calculating EPS

49,09,568               35,45,918               

iii) Basic and Diluted Earning per Share (On Face value of Rs. 10/ per share 6.85                        8.48                        
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29 Related Party Transactions

A  List of Related Parties where Control exists and Relationships:

Sr. 
No

Name of the Related Party Relationship

1)
Piotex Ventures Private Limited

2)
Piotex Textech Private Limited          

3)
Adler Bizsol LLP                               

4) Mr. Abhay Asalkar Director
5) Mr. Yogesh Nimodiya Director
6) Mr. Sandeep Vitthalrao Deore (Appointment date: 30th November, 2021) Director
7) Mr. Sandeep Narayanrao Deore (Appointment date: 15th September, 2023) Indipendent Director
8) Miss. Bhavisha Kunal Chauhan (Appointment date: 15th September, 2023) Indipendent Director
9) Mrs. Chaitali Abhay Asalkar Relative of Director
10) Mrs. Sandhya Yogesh Nimodiya Relative of Director

(₹ in Lakhs)

Transactions during the year:
 For the year ended

 31/03/2025 
 For the year ended

 31/03/2024 

i) Sale of Goods
Piotex Textech Private Limited 203.20                         153.52                              

ii) Purchase of Goods
Piotex Textech Private Limited 23.31                           25.99                                

iii) Interest Paid
Piotex Textech Private Limited 2.16                                    0.16                                  
Mr. Sandeep Vitthalrao Deore 2.45                             24.00                                

iv) Directors' remuneration / Seating fees
Mr. Abhay Asalkar 11.06                           -                                    
Mr. Yogesh Nimodiya 11.06                           -                                    
Miss. Bhavisha Kunal Chauhan 0.75                             -                                    

v) Reimbursement of Expenses
Mr. Abhay Asalkar 1.24                             -                                    
Mr. Yogesh Nimodiya 3.91                             -                                    

vi) Loan received from Related Parties
Piotex Textech Private Limited -                               612.60                              
Mr. Sandeep Vitthalrao Deore -                               200.00                              

vii) Loan Repaid to Related Parties
Piotex Textech Private Limited 194.30                         420.46                              
Mr. Abhay Asalkar -                               0.30                                  
Mr. Yogesh Nimodiya -                               0.30                                  
Mr. Sandeep Vitthalrao Deore 156.00                         439.50                              

viii) Loan/Advances given to associate body corporate
Piotex Textech Private Limited -                               491.00                              
Piotex Ventures Private Limited 5.35                             -                                    
Adler Bizsol LLP 118.80                         -                                    

ix) Loan/Advances received back from associate body corporate
Piotex Textech Private Limited -                               829.18                              
Piotex Ventures Private Limited 82.57                           -                                    

 Entities in which Key 
Management Personnel  
(KMP)/relative of KMP 

exercise significant 
influence 

B
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x) Interest Received
Piotex Textech Private Limited -                               -                                    
Piotex Ventures Private Limited 26.72                           30.00                                

xi) Facility Usage Charges
Piotex Textech Private Limited -                               2.20                                  
Adler Bizsol LLP -                               0.84                                  

xii) Rent paid
Piotex Textech Private Limited 2.83                             -                                    

Outstanding balance at the year end
 For the year ended

 31/03/2025 
 For the period ended

 31/03/2024 

Trade receivables
Piotex Textech Private Limited 611.73                  -                                    

Trade payables
Adler Bizsol LLP -                               0.84                                  
Piotex Textech Private Limited   -                               24.07                                

Other payable
Mr. Abhay Asalkar 1.07                             -                                    
Mr. Yogesh Nimodiya 1.21                             -                                    

Outstanding Business Advances/Loans 
Piotex Ventures Private Limited 196.71                         247.22                              
Adler Bizsol LLP 118.80                         -                                    

Outstanding Unsecured Loan
Piotex Textech Private Limited -                               192.14                              
Mr. Sandeep Vitthalrao Deore 0.25                             153.80                              
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28 Additional regulatory information

(a) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency

(b) Undisclosed income

(c) Loans or advances to specified persons

(d) Compliance with numbers of layers of companies

(e) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

(f) Relationship with struck off companies

The Company has neither traded nor invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the period
ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024. Further, the Company has also not received any deposits
or advances from any person for the purpose of trading or investing in Crypto Currency or Virtual
Currency.

During the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed as income any transactions not recorded in the books of accounts in the course of tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

The Company has  granted  loans or advances in nature of loans to promoters/directors/KMPs/Related 
parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) for the period ended March 31, 2025 and March 
31, 2024 an has complied with the applicable statutory requirments.

The Company is in compliance with the number of layers of companies in accordance with clause 87 of 
Section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 during the 
period ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
ii) provide any guarantee, security, or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956 during the period ended March 31, 
2025 and March 31, 2024.

During the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the Company has not advanced or loaned 
or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

During the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the Company has not received any fund 
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding 
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
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28 Additional regulatory information
(g)

(h)

(i)

(j) Utilisation of Initial Public Offer proceeds

1 To Meet Working Capital Requirement
2 General Corporate Expenses

The Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government 
or any government authority.

No proceeding have been initiated nor pending against the company for holding any benami property 
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

The provisions of sec. 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Corporate Social Responsibility are 
not applicable to the company.

Sr 
No.

Object of the issue
Amount to be 

utilised
Utilised upto 
31/03/2025

Balance

During Financial Year, Company had completed its Initial Public Offering ("IPO")of 15,39,600/- new
equity share of face value of Rs.10/- each at premium of Rs.84/- per equity share aggregating to
Rs.1447.22 Lakhs, Estimated Issue related expenses were Rs. 125.25 Lakhs and Net proceeds of the
issue is Rs. 1321.97 Lakhs. Pursuant to the IPO, the equity shares of company have to get listed on the
SME platform of BSE on 17th May, 2024. The Company has utilised the money raised by way of Initial-
Public offer during the year for the purpose for which they were raised as under :

1,321.97             1,321.97             -                      

1,051.05             1,051.05             -                      
270.92                270.92                -                      

77



PIOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

Note : 30 Financial Ratios 

Sr. 
No.

Ratio Numerator Denominator
As at 

March 31, 2025
As at 

March 31, 2024
% Variance

1 Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities                           4.45                           1.51 194.64%

2 Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Total Equity                           0.09                           0.47 -81.88%

3
Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio

Earnings before 
Interest, Tax and 
Exceptional Items

Current maturity 
of long term debt 
+ Interest 
Expense                           3.92                         17.40 -77.46%

4
Return on Equity 
(ROE)(%) Profit after tax

Average Net 
worth 19.27% 43.63% -55.83%

5
Inventory Turnover 
Ratio COGS Average Inventory                       294.57                       816.21 -63.91%

6
Trade receivables 
turnover ratio

Value of Sales & 
Services

Average Trade 
Receivable                           5.30                           5.75 -7.71%

7
Trade payables 
turnover ratio Purchases

Average Trade 
Payable                         11.18                           7.85 42.34%

8
Net capital turnover 
ratio Turnover

Average working 
capital                           7.86                         11.93 -34.10%

9 Net profit ratio(%) Profit after tax
Value of Sales & 
Services 2.50% 2.54% -1.44%

10
Return on capital 
employed (ROCE)(%) EBIT Capital Employed                           0.19                           0.33 -41.53%

11
Return on 
investments(%) Net Profit

Equity + Reserves 
& Surplus                           0.13                           0.32 -58.86%

Reasons for Variations
1 Current Ratio : It is increased due to decrease in current liablity.
2 Debt-Equity Ratio : It is decreased due to increase in total equity.
3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio : It is decreases due to increase in interest expenses and current maturity of long term debt.
4 Return on Equity (ROE)(%) : It is decreased due to increase in Seurity premium
5 Inventory Turnover Ratio : It is decrease due to increase in average inventory
6 Trade payables turnover ratio : It is increased due to decrease in Trade payable
7 Return on Capital Employed : It is decreased due to increase in capital employed

8 Return on investments(%) : It is decreased due to increase in equity and reserves & surplus as well

For S V J K and Associates. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants PIOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Firm's Registration No: 135182W

Ankit Singhal Abhay Asalkar Yogesh Nimodiya
Partner Managing Director Director / CFO
M No.151324 (DIN : 06851614) (DIN : 06851606)
UDIN: 25151324BMOBZY1614

Mahendra Singh Rajpoot
Company Secretory

Place: Ahmedabad Place: Pune
Date: 30th May, 2025 Date: 30th May, 2025
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